
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, February 20, 2020 - 9:00 a.m. 

Location: Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (CCRTA) 
602 N. Staples Street, Suite 210, Corpus Christi, TX 78401 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Quorum Determination

2. Public Comments for Items not on the Agenda

Opportunity for public comments for items not on the Agenda and within the TAC’s jurisdiction (except in
matters related to pending litigation). Proceedings are recorded. We ask that remarks be limited to three
(3) minutes, that you identify yourself, and give your address.  Those persons addressing the TAC through a
translator are given twice the amount of time, or six (6) minutes to provide their comments. Please
complete a speaker sign-up card.

3. Approval of the January 16, 2020 TAC Regular Meeting Minutes

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION

A. FY 2019-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment #5:
Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (CCRTA) New Projects 
Action: Review, Discuss and Recommend for TPC Approval  

5. INFORMATION ONLY ITEMS

A. FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Development:
Action: Review and Discuss   

B. FY 2021-2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) Development: 
Action: Review and Discuss 

6. Regional Freight Topic

A. Corpus Christi International Airport (CCIA) Freight Information

7. Member Agency Statements for Items of Community Interest: Upcoming events, holidays, or
acknowledgements.

8. Upcoming Meetings:

A.  Transportation Policy Committee: Regular Meeting: March 5, 2020 
B.  Technical Advisory Committee: Regular Meeting: March 19, 2020 

9. Adjourn
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

- Indicates attachment(s) for the agenda item. 



 
 

 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTIFICATION 

All MPO Committee meetings are public meetings and open to the public. Any persons with disabilities who plan 
to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the MPO at (361) 
884-0687 at least 48 hours in advance so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 
MEETING LOCATION MAP 



CORPUS CHRISTI METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, January 16, 2020 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Quorum determination

Mr. Brian DeLatte called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

TAC Members Present:

Brian DeLatte, P.E.  City of Portland Jeff Pollack, AICP, Port of Corpus Christi 
Howard Gillespie, San Patricio County Juan Pimentel, P.E., Nueces County 
Sarah Munoz, P.E., City of Corpus Christi Paula Sales-Evans, P.E., TxDOT-CRP 
Cristina Perez, Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority
Richard Bullock, Coastal Bend Council of Government

MPO Staff Present: Rob MacDonald, P.E.; Craig Casper, AICP; Daniel Carrizales, Victor Mendieta; and Yoshiko
Boulan 

2. Election of Officers for the Technical Advisory Committee

In accordance with the MPO Bylaws, the Technical Advisory Committee shall elect a Chairperson and a Vice
Chairperson from among its voting members during the first meeting of each calendar year.

Mr. Pollack made a motion to re-elect Mr. DeLatte for Chairperson, Mr. Gillespie seconded; motion passed
unanimously.

Ms. DeLatte made a motion to re-elect Mr. Robinson for Vice Chairperson.  Mr. Gillespie seconded; motion
passed unanimously.  Since Mr. Robinson has been working on additional duties for CCRTA, his availability is
uncertain. If Mr. Robinson is not available this year, the TAC will discuss accordingly.  Ms. Perez will inform Mr.
Robinson of the Election Officers decision.

3. Public Comments for Items not on the agenda

Mr. DeLatte asked for public comments for items not on the agenda.  None were offered.

4. Approval of December 19, 2019 TAC Special Meeting Minutes.

Mr. Gillespie made a motion to approve the December 19, 2019 TAC Meeting Minutes. Ms. Sales-Evans
seconded; motion passed unanimously.

5. Discussion and Possible Action

A. Public Hearing for the DRAFT 2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP)

Mr. DeLatte opened the Public Hearing for the DRAFT 2020-2045 MTP at 9:04 a.m. There were no public
comments on the DRAFT 2020-2045 MTP.  The Public Hearing was closed at 9:05 a.m.

B. DRAFT 2020-2045 MTP

Mr. MacDonald informed the TAC members that all DRAFT 2020-2045 MTP Chapters and appendices except
for Appendix B are available for review and comments until February 6, 2020.  Appendix B is a collection of all
Public Comments the Corpus Christi MPO received during TAC and TPC meetings as well as Public
Meetings/Open-Houses and through the MPO website.  The MPO’s responses to public comments are also
included in Appendix B.  The appendix will be continued to be updated up to the official adoption of the 2020-
2045 MTP.  Appendix C is a collection of issued Public Notices, news articles and interviews. The last public
notice was posted in the Caller-Times on January 5, 2020 and the affidavit with the newspaper clipping will be
included in Appendix C.

Ms. Sales-Evans made a motion to recommend the TPC approve the DRAFT 2020-2045 MTP.  Mr. Gillespie
seconded; motion passed unanimously.

Agenda Item #3



Mr. MacDonald thanked the TAC members for their documents and information included in the DRAFT 2020-
2045 MTP as references that support the contents of MTP Chapters, especially TxDOT for their performance 
measures and data collection for State-level and Regional-level information. 

C. DRAFT Congestion Management Process (CMP) 

Mr. Casper informed the TAC that the DRAFT CMP is finalized, and it is a solid base to be used in the next 2 to 
3 years with updated data and information. Mr. Casper inquired whether the TAC members had any questions 
regarding the DRAFT CMP.  The DRAFT CMP has been available for public comments, but none were offered 
as of January 16, 2020.  Mr. Casper requested the TAC to recommend the TPC approve the DRAFT CMP if 
there are no questions or concerns. 

Mr. Gillespie made a motion to recommend the TPC to approve the DRAFT CMP.  Ms. Sales-Evans seconded; 
motion passed unanimously. 

D. FY 2019-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment #5: Corpus Christi Regional 
Transportation Authority (CCRTA) New Projects 

Mr. MacDonald informed the TAC that CCRTA requested to add $40 million in projects to the FY 2019-2022 
TIP and release the amendment for public review and comments.   

Ms. Perez briefed the TAC members that these additional projects are due to the annual budget review and 
planning.  There were no project deletions, but additions and a total project cost increase.  The total project 
cost of Paratransit Fleet Replacement programmed in FY 2019 has been increased from $1,760,000 to 
$3,083,100.  Since the difference is more than 10%, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) directed CCRTA to 
request an amendment to the MPO’s TIP.   

Mr. Sales-Evans asked how the additional projects will be processed. Mr. MacDonald explained that since TIP 
projects must be in the MTP, these additional projects were included in Chapter 7: Implementation Plan, 
2020-2045 MTP in accordance with the Federal requirement.  The FY 2023 projects are included in the 
Illustrative Project List. Ms. Sales-Evans inquired that these projects will be included in the next FY 2021-2024 
TIP that the MPO and Committees start working on right after the 2020-2045 MTP is officially adopted. Mr. 
MacDonald assured the TAC members that the all projects’ status will be verified, and all on-going projects 
are to be included in the next TIP.   

Mr. Gillespie made a motion to recommend the TPC to release the FY 2019-2022 TIP Amendment #5 by 
CCRTA for public comments.  Mr. Pollack seconded; motion passed unanimously.   

6. Freight Topic: National Freight Strategic Plan – Request for Information

Mr. MacDonald informed the TAC members that the Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) is developing a
national-level freight plan, and as part of this development effort, U.S. DOT is seeking input from public and
private stakeholders, local and state agencies, and others interested in this topic.  The comment period will be
closed on February 10, 2020.  Since a national-level freight plan is currently being developed, it is expected
that a state freight plan will be developed as well, and the MPO will follow the suit.

Since the TAC also acts as the MPO’s Freight Subcommittee, freight topics will be discussed every month.  Mr.
MacDonald requested the TAC members to inform the MPO if there are any freight topics, they want to
discuss at TAC meeting.

Mr. Pollack stated that the Port of Corpus Christi has a couple of freight topics to share including freight
movement and freight infrastructure.

7. Member Agency Statements for Items of Interest: Projects, Events, and Activities

Ms. Sales-Evans reminded that the Texas Transportation Forum will be held in San Antonio in February and
registration is still open for people who are interested in.

Mr. Casper informed the TAC members that the MPO will apply for the Federal Safety Grant by noon on
January 17, 2020.  The grant application is for the development of tools to conduct spot analysis on crashes
and identify interventions by using a roadway safety system called DiExSys developed by Dr. Jake Kononov

Agenda Item #3



who has the extensive experience and knowledge in transportation safety.  This grant is 100% Federal funds 
and no match is required; the MPO is requesting approximately $400,000.  The award will be announced by 
April and the MPO will inform the TAC of the result. 

Mr. Pollack informed the TAC members that the Port of Corpus Christi is discussing the scope of the Joe Fulton 
International Trade Corridor study with the selected service provider.  The study will be based on the data 
collection, modeling projection based on travel demand model and industrial development on the north side 
of the ship channel in next 3 years.  This study is expected to identify priorities of interventions and 
improvements of freight management and infrastructures. The Port of Corpus Christi will share these findings 
and data.  

8. Upcoming Meetings:

A. Transportation Policy Committee: Regular Meeting: February 6, 2020 
B. Technical Advisory Committee: Regular Meeting: February 20, 2020 

9. Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 9:26 a.m.

Agenda Item #3



Agenda Item #4A 

Date: February 14, 2020  
To: Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)  
From: Christina A. Perez, Director of Procurement 
Subject: FY 2019-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Amendment #5 - Inclusion of Additional Transit Projects  
Action: Review, Discuss, and Recommend Approval to the TPC 

Summary 
The Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (CCRTA) requests the Corpus Christi MPO 
include additional funds for one existing FY 2019-2022 TIP project and add a total of 22 additional 
projects to the existing FY 2019-2022 TIP, and the 2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
(MTP), as identified in the tables below. Attachment #1 illustrates the proposed new/modified 
projects in “red” font. 

Amending FY 2019 Project: 
Program 

Year Project Name/Description Funding Currently Approved 
Total Project Cost 

Amended Total 
Project Cost 

MPO Project 
Number 

FY 2019 Paratransit Fleet 
Replacement 5307 $1,760,000 $3,083,100 T-116-19 

The currently approved total project cost is $1,760,000. In reviewing the needs of our paratransit 
fleet, the cost of 12 (twelve) paratransit vehicles are approximately $3,083,100. 

Addition of 10 Projects in FY 2020: 

Program 
Year Project Name/Description Funding Total Project 

Cost 
FY 2020 Engine Overhaul Program 5307 $815,100 

FY 2020 CNG De-fueling Station 5307 $60,000 

FY 2020 Sidewalk Improvements (ADA) – Corpus Christi 5307 $1,500,000 

FY 2020 Supervisor /Relief Vehicles (Apportionment FFY 2018) 5307 $392,000 

FY 2020 Supervisory/Relief Vehicles (Apportionment FFY 2019) 5307 $226,700 

FY 2020 Rolling Stock/Paratransit Fleet Replacements (all variety of rolling stock) 5307 $4,574,000 

FY 2020 Bus Stop Shelter Amenities 5307 $523,800 

FY 2020 Bus Support/Equipment and Facilities 5307 $31,100 

FY 2020 Bus Support/Equipment and Facilities/Miscellaneous Shop and Garage 
Equipment (Apportionment FFY 2017) 5339 $47,000 

FY 2020 Bus Support/Equipment and Facilities/Miscellaneous Shop and Garage 
Equipment (Apportionment FFY 2018) 5339 $236,000 

FY 2020 Project Total $8,405,700 

602 N. Staples, Corpus Christi, Texas 78401 |   p. 361-289-2712  |   f. 361-903-3578 |   www.ccrta.org 

http://www.ccrta.org/


 

Agenda Item #4A 

Addition of 8 Projects in FY 2021: 
 

Program 
Year  Project Name/Description  Funding Total Project 

Cost 

FY 2021 Bus Stop Amenities 5307 $862,700 

FY 2021 Bus Stop Improvements 5307 $1,000,000 

FY 2021 Support/Relief Vehicles 5307 $212,000 

FY 2021 Rolling Stock (All variety of rolling stock)  5307 $7,369,000 

FY 2021 Bus Support/Equipment and Facilities/Hardware/Software 5307 $205,000 

FY 2021 Engine Overhaul Program 5307 $635,800 

FY 2021 Bus Support/Equipment and Facilities/Miscellaneous Shop and Garage 
Equipment 5339 $45,000 

FY 2021 Bus Support Equipment and Facilities/Hardware/Software 5339 $1,210,000 

 FY 2021 Project Total  $11,539,500 

 
Addition of 4 Projects in FY 2022: 
 

Program 
Year Project Name/Description Funding Total Project 

Cost 

FY 2022 Rolling Stock (All variety of rolling stock) 5307 $6,579,300 

FY 2022 Support/Relief Vehicles 5307 $344,500 

FY 2022 Bus Stop Improvements 5307 $500,000 

FY 2022 Bus Support Equipment and Facilities/Hardware/Software 5307 $1,090,000 

 FY 2022 Project Total  $8,513,800 

 
Addition of 7 Projects in FY 2023: 
 

Program 
Year Project Name/Description  Funding  Total Project 

Cost 

FY 2023 Rolling Stock (All variety of rolling stock) 5307 $8,543,500 

FY 2023 Support/Relief Vehicles 5307 $307,100 

FY 2023 Bus Stop Improvements 5307 $500,000 

FY 2023 Preventive Maintenance 5307 $1,000,000 

FY 2023 Bus Stop Amenities 5339 $987,000 

FY 2023 Bus Support/Equipment and Facilities/Miscellaneous Shop and Garage 
Equipment   5339 $54,000 

FY 2023 Section 5310 Sub-recipients 5310 $400,000 

 FY 2023 Project Total  $11,791,600 

 
CCRTA is adding these additional projects to TIP FY 2019-2022 and the 2020-2045 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan (MTP), due to the requirements set forth by the Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA). Adding these additional projects will allow CCRTA to apply for yearly formula funds granted 
the CCRTA.  



TIP FY
MPO 

PROJECT 
NUMBER

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
FTA FUNDING 

CATEGORY

FTA 
APPORTIONMENT 

YEAR CA
PI

TA
L

O
PE

RA
TI

N
G

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

PL
AN

N
IN

G

AMENDMENT 
DATE

AMENDMENT 
ACTION

REMARKS FTA FUNDS
OTHER 

SOURCES
TOTAL PROJ COST

2019 T-101-18A Mobile Bus Lift 5307 2018 Y $64,000 $16,000 $80,000
2019 T-106-18A Section 5310-Seniors & People w/Disability 5310 2018 Y $115,618 $28,904 $144,522
2019 T-113-19 Bus DVR Camera Replacement 5307 2018 Y $258,424 $64,606 $323,030
2019 T-114-19 Two (2) Hybrid SUV Replacement 5307 2018 Y $59,928 $14,982 $74,910
2019 T-115-19 Port A Fleet Replacement 5307 2018 Y $68,000 $17,000 $85,000
2019 T-116-19 Paratransit Fleet Replacement 5307 2017 Y $2,620,635 $462,465 $3,083,100
2019 T-117-19 Two (2) VPG Support Vehicles Replacement 5307 2018 Y $54,400 $13,600 $68,000
2019 T-118-19 Bear Lane Fencing Replacement 5307 2018 Y $24,828 $6,207 $31,035
2019 T-119-19 Concrete Improvement for Bus Pads 5307 2018 Y $280,000 $70,000 $350,000
2019 T-120-19 Fluid Storage Tanks 5339 2018 Y $22,000 $5,500 $27,500
2019 T-121-19 Coin Sorter 5339 2018 Y $8,800 $2,200 $11,000
2019 T-122-19 Shelves for Maintenance Dept. 5339 2018 Y $40,000 $10,000 $50,000
2019 T-123-19 Bus Automatic Passenger Counting Solution 5339 2018 Y $157,281 $39,320 $196,601
2019 T-133-19 Preventive Maintenance 5307 2018 Y $800,000 $200,000 $1,000,000

$4,573,914 $950,784 $5,524,698
2020 T-102-18A Port/Ayers Renovation Other FTA 2018 Y $3,951,713 $987,928 $4,939,641
2020 T-107-18A Mobile Bus Lift 5339 2018 Y $34,000 $6,000 $40,000
2020 T-108-18A Del Mar South Campus Transfer Station Other FTA 2019 Y $1,946,230 $486,557 $2,432,787
2020 T-109-18 Bus Stop Improvements 5307 2019 Y $800,000 $200,000 $1,000,000
2020 T-110-18A Bus Stop Amenities 5307 2019 Y $419,000 $104,750 $523,750
2020 T-111-18 Replacement of Buses 5307 2019 Y $4,887,344 $862,472 $5,749,816
2020 T-112-18A Section 5310 Sub-recipients 5310 2019 Y $320,000 $80,000 $400,000
2020 T-124-19 Bear Lane Bus Parking Lot Other FTA 2018 Y $700,000 $175,000 $875,000
2020 T-125-19 Supervisory Vans (7) 5339 2019 Y $267,750 $47,250 $315,000
2020 T-134-19 Preventive Maintenance 5307 2019 Y $800,000 $200,000 $1,000,000
2020 T-137-20 Engine Overhaul Program 5307 2019 Y $652,080 $163,020 $815,100
2020 T-138-20 CNG De-fueling Station 5307 2019 Y $48,000 $12,000 $60,000
2020 T-139-20 Sidewalk Improvements (ADA) 5307 2018 Y $1,200,000 $300,000 $1,500,000
2020 T-140-20 Supervisory/Relief Vehicles 5307 2018 Y $313,600 $78,400 $392,000
2020 T-141-20 Supervisory/Relief Vehicles 5307 2019 Y $181,360 $45,340 $226,700
2020 T-142-20 Rolling Stock/Paratransit Fleet Replacements 5307 2018 Y $3,887,900 $686,100 $4,574,000
2020 T-143-20 Bus Stop Shelter Amenities 5307 2018 Y $419,040 $104,760 $523,800
2020 T-144-20 Bus Support/Equipment and Facilities 5307 2019 Y $24,880 $6,220 $31,100

2020 T-145-20
Bus Support/Equipment and 

Facilities/Miscellaneous Shop & Garage 
Equipment

5339 2017 Y $37,600 $9,400 $47,000

2020 T-146-20
Bus Support/Equipment and 

Facilities/Miscellaneous Shop & Garage 
Equipment

5339 2018 Y $188,800 $47,200 $236,000

$21,079,297 $4,602,397 $25,681,694
2021 T-126-19 Bus Stop Amenities 5339 2020 Y $678,702 $169,675 $848,377
2021 T-127-19 Bus Stop Improvements 5307 2020 Y $800,000 $200,000 $1,000,000

FY 2019 Total

FY 2020 Total

Agenda  Item #4 - Attachment 1

The new/modified projects are indicated in "red font".



TIP FY
MPO 

PROJECT 
NUMBER

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
FTA FUNDING 

CATEGORY

FTA 
APPORTIONMENT 

YEAR CA
PI

TA
L

O
PE

RA
TI

N
G

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

PL
AN

N
IN

G

AMENDMENT 
DATE

AMENDMENT 
ACTION

REMARKS FTA FUNDS
OTHER 

SOURCES
TOTAL PROJ COST

2021 T-128-19 Mobile Bus Lift 5307 2020 Y $36,000 $9,000 $45,000
2021 T-129-19 5310 Sub-recipient 5310 2020 Y $320,000 $80,000 $400,000
2021 T-135-19 Preventive Maintenance 5307 2020 Y $800,000 $200,000 $1,000,000
2021 T-147-20 Bus Stop Amenities 5307 2020 Y $690,160 $172,540 $862,700
2021 T-148-20 Bus Stop Improvements 5307 2020 Y $800,000 $200,000 $1,000,000
2021 T-149-20 Support/Relief Vehicles 5307 2020 Y $169,600 $42,400 $212,000
2021 T-150-20 Rolling Stock 5307 2020 Y $6,263,650 $1,105,350 $7,369,000

2021 T-151-20
Bus Support/Equipment & 

Facilities/Hardware/Software
5307 2020 Y $164,000 $41,000 $205,000

2021 T-152-20 Engine Overhaul Program 5307 2020 Y $508,640 $127,160 $635,800

2021 T-153-20
Bus Support/Equipment and 

Facilities/Miscellaneous Shop & Garage 
Equipment

5339 2020 Y $36,000 $9,000 $45,000

2021 T-154-20
Bus Support/Equipment & 

Facilities/Hardware/Software
5339 2020 Y $968,000 $242,000 $1,210,000

$12,234,752 $2,598,125 $14,832,877
2022 T-130-19 5310 Sub-recipient 5310 2021 Y $320,000 $80,000 $400,000
2022 T-131-19 Westside Station near DMC West Campus 5307 2021 Y $4,080,000 $1,020,000 $5,100,000
2022 T-132-19 Bus Stop Amenities 5339 2021 Y $690,116 $172,529 $862,645
2022 T-136-19 Preventive Maintenance 5307 2021 Y $800,000 $200,000 $1,000,000
2022 T-155-20 Rolling Stock 5307 2021 Y $5,592,405 $986,895 $6,579,300
2022 T-156-20 Support/Relief Vehicles 5307 2021 Y $275,600 $68,900 $344,500
2022 T-157-20 Bus Stop Improvements 5307 2021 Y $400,000 $100,000 $500,000

2022 T-158-20
Bus Support/Equipment & 

Facilities/Hardware/Software
5307 2021 Y $872,000 $218,000 $1,090,000

$13,030,121 $2,846,324 $15,876,445
$50,918,084 $10,997,630 $61,915,714

The new/modified projects are indicated in "red font".

FY 2021 Total

FY 2022 Total
FY2019-2022 Grand Total

Agenda  Item #4 - Attachment 1



Agenda Item #5A 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:  February 14, 2020 
To:  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
From:  Craig Casper, Senior Transportation Planner 
Through: Robert MacDonald, Transportation Planning Director 
Subject: Item 5A:  FY 2021-2024 TIP Development  
Action:  Discussion 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 

Each metropolitan planning organization (MPO) is required, under 23 CFR 450 326 and 49 U.S.C. 5303, 
to maintain a Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)—a list of funded transportation projects—
covering a period of four years. The TIP must be developed in cooperation with the state department of 
transportation and the designated recipient of federal transit funds. The TIP will include both capital and 
non-capital surface transportation projects, bicycle and pedestrian facilities and other transportation 
enhancements, Federal Lands Highway projects, and safety projects included in the State’s Strategic 
Highway Safety Plan. The TIP will include all regionally significant projects receiving FHWA or FTA funds, 
or for which FHWA or FTA approval is required, including all non-federally funded projects that are 
included in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP). Furthermore, the TIP is fiscally constrained by 
year. 

The TIP is prepared and adopted by the Corpus Christi Metropolitan Planning Organization (Corpus Christi 
MPO), the region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), in collaboration with TxDOT and the 
Corpus Christi Regional Transit Authority (CCRTA). The Corpus Christi MPO will coordinate with TxDOT 
and CCRTA to revise the TIP, scheduled for release for public comment at the May 7, 2020 meeting and 
adoption by the TPC during the June 4, 2020 meeting.  

Prior TPC Actions 

• The FY 2019-2022 Transportation Improvement Program was adopted on April 5, 2018.  
• The regional goals and performance metrics were adopted as part of the 2020-

2045Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) on February 6, 2020.  

Recommendation None. This is an Information Only Item 

Alternatives None. This is an Information Only Item. 

Proposed Motion None. 

Financial Impact None at this time.  The development of the TIP is included in the funding identified in 
the current Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) of the Corpus Christi MPO. 

Background 

Congress requires MPOs, transit agencies, and DOTs to invest their federal funds using performance-
based planning and performance targets for safety, transit asset management, pavement & bridge 



Agenda Item #5A 

conditions, and operational performance of the National Highway System (NHS). This requirement 
includes providing a baseline and tracking and reporting changes in performance so that the public can 
see progress toward improving each of the adopted metrics. The adopted goals and performance 
metrics for the Corpus Christi MPO are found in Chapter 3 of the adopted 2020-2045 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan.  

Federally funded projects in the TIP must first be included in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. The 
MTP is the document which directs transportation investments over a 25-year horizon. A TIP is the 
implementation of the projects included in the adopted MTP. The production of the TIP is the culmination 
of the regional transportation planning process and represents a consensus among state and regional 
officials for which projects are implemented. Consensus is important because the federal and state 
governments want assurances that all parties have cooperatively developed priorities before committing 
funds to a project. A project's inclusion in the TIP signifies regional agreement on the priority of the 
project and establishes federal fund eligibility. Under federal law, the TIP: 

• Covers a minimum four-year period 
• Is updated at least every four years, and can be updated sooner, but must be updated in a cycle 

compatible with the State Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP). 
• The TIP must be fiscally constrained, by project and by year and is not a "wish list" of projects. 
• Is approved by the MPO and the Governor and is incorporated into the STIP without 

modification.  
• Lists all federally funded and regionally significant locally or privately funded projects. 
• Uses Year of Expenditure costs with a consistent inflation factor.  
• The estimated project cost for projects may include the entire project, or may stipulate one 

project phase (i.e. Feasibility, NEPA, Preliminary Engineering, ROW Purchase, Construction 
Engineering, Operations, Maintenance).  

• The TIP may be changed after it is adopted. The approved TIP can be amended to add new 
projects, delete projects, advance projects into the first year, and accommodate cost and phase 
of work or scope changes to a project.  

• Minor adjustments can be made administratively, but amendments which add, delete, or 
significantly alter projects from the TIP must go through a public involvement process and be 
approved by the MPO Transportation Policy Committee.  

• The TIP is multimodal, although in addition to the more traditional highway and public transit 
projects, the TIP may also include bicycle, pedestrian, regional advanced environmental 
mitigation, stormwater, and freight-related projects and planning studies. 

Within this regulatory framework of metropolitan cooperation, the Texas Department of Transportation 
has lead responsibility for selecting and programming federally funded Interstate, Maintenance, Bridge, 
National Highway System, Statewide (non-metropolitan) STP, Safety, Enhancement, and certain FTA 
projects. While Corpus Christi MPO only directly selects projects in a limited number of funding 
categories, all projects with federal and state funding require both MPO and TxDOT review and 
concurrence, and transit projects are reviewed for consistency with the MPO MTP. An MPO can remove 
transit or DOT-selected federally funded projects from the MTP and TIP within their Metropolitan 
Planning Area, effectively stopping the project, but the MPO cannot direct how or where most federal 
funding is spent.  

Attachment(s) 

1. STIP Timeline 
2. Federal Requirements Summary 
3. Preliminary Draft TIP Development Process 
4. 2020-2045 MTP Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List 

http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/01_mtp/2020-2045/Chapters/2020-2045_MTP_Chapter_3_Planning-Framework_20200206.pdf
http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/01_mtp/2020-2045/Chapters/2020-2045_MTP_Chapter_3_Planning-Framework_20200206.pdf
https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/transportation-planning/stips.html
https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/transportation-planning/statewide-plan.html
https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/transportation-planning/statewide-plan.html


AUG  
2019 

SEPT  
 2019 

OCT   
2019 

NOV   
2019 

DEC  
2019 

JAN    
2020 

FEB  
2020 

MAR  
2020 

APR 
2020 

MAY  
2020 

JUN   
2020 

JUL 
2020 

AUG  
2020 

SEPT  
2020 

Commission  
Approves 2020 UTP 

Sets Funding Levels 

Using  2020 UTP forecasts, Districts, Divisions, and MPOs  prepare   

2021-2024 TIPs and Financial Summaries , MTPs and Conformity Analysis. 

Submit 2021-2024 STIP 
to FHWA / FTA 

Districts and MPOs must coordinate project  

informa on used in eSTIP portal templates / upload. 

2021 -2024 TIPs Due into 
eSTIP portal and finalized  

by  June 22, 2020 

TPP Reviews 2021-2024 
TIPs and backup  
documenta on 

Commission  
Approves 2021 UTP 

Sets Funding Levels 

Districts and MPOs go thru  
TIP  Public Involvement 

July 10, 2020 eSTIP portal 
set to pending review  

(posted in TxReg). Starts  
45 day public involvement. 

Commission Acts on the  
2021 –2024  STIP 

Thursday, August 27, 2020 

STIP Public Hearing Held 
August 18, 2020 

Quarterly Revision Due into eSTIP portal 

2020 November Revision* Tuesday October 27, 2020 *
(tenta ve) 

2021 February Revision Tuesday,  January 26, 2021 

2021 May Revision Tuesday,  April 27, 2021 

2021 August Revision** Tuesday, July 27, 2021 

2021 November Revision Tuesday, October 26, 2021 

2022 February Revision Tuesday , January 25, 2022 

2022 May Revision Tuesday, April  26, 2022 

2022 August Revision TBD 

2021— 2024 STIP R e v i sions 

FIRST Revision to the 2021—2024 STIP will be November 2020 

2021 – 2024  ST IP   T IMETABLE 

*The November 2020 STIP revision deadline will be predicated on when FHWA / FTA approves the 2021-2024 STIP.

** September 2021 through May 2022  District , Divisions, and MPOs developing  2023-2026 STIP. 

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 1   



Agenda Item #5A – Attachment 2 

FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 
§450.326   Development and content of the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).

(a) The MPO, in cooperation with the State(s) and any affected public transportation operator(s), shall 
develop a TIP for the metropolitan planning area. The TIP shall reflect the investment priorities established 
in the current metropolitan transportation plan and shall cover a period of no less than 4 years, be 
updated at least every 4 years, and be approved by the MPO and the Governor. However, if the TIP covers 
more than 4 years, the FHWA and the FTA will consider the projects in the additional years as 
informational. The MPO may update the TIP more frequently, but the cycle for updating the TIP must be 
compatible with the STIP development and approval process. The TIP expires when the FHWA/FTA 
approval of the STIP expires. Copies of any updated or revised TIPs must be provided to the FHWA and 
the FTA.  

(b) The MPO shall provide all interested parties with a reasonable opportunity to comment on the 
proposed TIP as required by §450.316(a). In addition, the MPO shall publish or otherwise make readily 
available the TIP for public review, including (to the maximum extent practicable) in electronically 
accessible formats and means, such as the World Wide Web, as described in §450.316(a). 

(c) The TIP shall be designed such that once implemented, it makes progress toward achieving the 
performance targets established under §450.306(d). 

(d) The TIP shall include, to the maximum extent practicable, a description of the anticipated effect of the 
TIP toward achieving the performance targets identified in the metropolitan transportation plan, linking 
investment priorities to those performance targets. 

(e) The TIP shall include capital and non-capital surface transportation projects (or phases of projects) 
within the boundaries of the metropolitan planning area proposed for funding under 23 U.S.C. and 49 
U.S.C. Chapter 53 (including transportation alternatives; associated transit improvements; Federal Lands 
Access Program projects; HSIP projects; trails projects; accessible pedestrian walkways; and bicycle 
facilities), except the following that may be included: 

(1) Safety projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 402 and 49 U.S.C. 31102; 
(2) Metropolitan planning projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 104(d), and 49 U.S.C. 5305(d); 
(3) State planning and research projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 505 and 49 U.S.C. 5305(e); 
(4) At the discretion of the State and MPO, metropolitan planning projects funded with Surface 

Transportation Program funds; 
(5) Emergency relief projects (except those involving substantial functional, locational, or capacity 

changes); 
(6) National planning and research projects funded under 49 U.S.C. 5314; and 
(7) Project management oversight projects funded under 49 U.S.C. 5327. 

(f) The TIP shall contain all regionally significant projects requiring an action by the FHWA or the FTA 
whether or not the projects are funded under title 23 U.S.C. Chapters 1 and 2 or title 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 
(e.g., addition of an interchange to the Interstate System with State, local, and/or private funds and 
congressionally designated projects not funded under 23 U.S.C. or 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53). For public 
information and conformity purposes, the TIP shall include all regionally significant projects proposed to 
be funded with Federal funds other than those administered by the FHWA or the FTA, as well as all 
regionally significant projects to be funded with non-Federal funds. 

(g) The TIP shall include, for each project or phase (e.g., preliminary engineering, environment/NEPA, 
right-of-way, design, or construction), the following: 

(1) Sufficient descriptive material (i.e., type of work, termini, and length) to identify the project or 
phase; 

(2) Estimated total project cost, which may extend beyond the 4 years of the TIP; 
(3) The amount of Federal funds proposed to be obligated during each program year for the 

project or phase (for the first year, this includes the proposed category of Federal funds and 



Agenda Item #5A – Attachment 2 

source(s) of non-Federal funds. For the second, third, and fourth years, this includes the likely 
category or possible categories of Federal funds and sources of non-Federal funds); 

(4) Identification of the agencies responsible for carrying out the project or phase; 
(5) In nonattainment and maintenance areas, identification of those projects that are identified as 

TCMs in the applicable SIP; 
(6) In nonattainment and maintenance areas, included projects shall be specified in sufficient 

detail (design concept and scope) for air quality analysis in accordance with the EPA 
transportation conformity regulations (40 CFR part 93, subpart A); and 

(7) In areas with Americans with Disabilities Act required paratransit and key station plans, 
identification of those projects that will implement these plans. 

(h) Projects that are not appropriate scale for individual identification in a given program year may be 
grouped by function, work type, and/or geographic area using the applicable classifications under 23 CFR 
771.117(c) and (d) and/or 40 CFR part 93. In addition, projects proposed for funding under title 23 U.S.C. 
Chapter 2 that are not regionally significant may be grouped in one line item or identified individually in 
the TIP. 

(i) Each project or project phase included in the TIP shall be consistent with the approved metropolitan 
transportation plan. 

(j) The TIP shall include a financial plan that demonstrates how the approved TIP can be implemented, 
indicates resources from public and private sources that are reasonably expected to be made available to 
carry out the TIP, and recommends any additional financing strategies for needed projects and programs. 
In developing the TIP, the MPO, State(s), and public transportation operator(s) shall cooperatively develop 
estimates of funds that are reasonably expected to be available to support TIP implementation in 
accordance with §450.314(a). Only projects for which construction or operating funds can reasonably be 
expected to be available may be included. In the case of new funding sources, strategies for ensuring their 
availability shall be identified. In developing the financial plan, the MPO shall take into account all projects 
and strategies funded under title 23 U.S.C., title 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, and other Federal funds; and 
regionally significant projects that are not federally funded. For purposes of transportation operations 
and maintenance, the financial plan shall contain system-level estimates of costs and revenue sources 
that are reasonably expected to be available to adequately operate and maintain Federal-aid highways 
(as defined by 23 U.S.C. 101(a)(6)) and public transportation (as defined by title 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53). In 
addition, for illustrative purposes, the financial plan may include additional projects that would be 
included in the TIP if reasonable additional resources beyond those identified in the financial plan were 
to become available. Revenue and cost estimates for the TIP must use an inflation rate(s) to reflect “year 
of expenditure dollars,” based on reasonable financial principles and information, developed 
cooperatively by the MPO, State(s), and public transportation operator(s). 

(k) The TIP shall include a project, or a phase of a project, only if full funding can reasonably be anticipated 
to be available for the project within the time period contemplated for completion of the project. In 
nonattainment and maintenance areas, projects included in the first 2 years of the TIP shall be limited to 
those for which funds are available or committed. For the TIP, financial constraint shall be demonstrated 
and maintained by year and shall include sufficient financial information to demonstrate which projects 
are to be implemented using current and/or reasonably available revenues, while federally supported 
facilities are being adequately operated and maintained. In the case of proposed funding sources, 
strategies for ensuring their availability shall be identified in the financial plan consistent with paragraph 
(h) of this section. In nonattainment and maintenance areas, the TIP shall give priority to eligible TCMs 
identified in the approved SIP in accordance with the EPA transportation conformity regulations (40 CFR 
part 93, subpart A) and shall provide for their timely implementation. 

(l) In cases that the FHWA and the FTA find a TIP to be fiscally constrained and a revenue source is 
subsequently removed or substantially reduced (i.e., by legislative or administrative actions), the FHWA 
and the FTA will not withdraw the original determination of fiscal constraint. However, in such cases, the 



Agenda Item #5A – Attachment 2 

FHWA and the FTA will not act on an updated or amended TIP that does not reflect the changed revenue 
situation. 

(m) Procedures or agreements that distribute suballocated Surface Transportation Program funds to 
individual jurisdictions or modes within the MPA by pre-determined percentages or formulas are 
inconsistent with the legislative provisions that require the MPO, in cooperation with the State and the 
public transportation operator, to develop a prioritized and financially constrained TIP and shall not be 
used unless they can be clearly shown to be based on considerations required to be addressed as part of 
the metropolitan transportation planning process. 

(n) As a management tool for monitoring progress in implementing the transportation plan, the TIP 
should: 

(1) Identify the criteria and process for prioritizing implementation of transportation plan elements 
(including multimodal trade-offs) for inclusion in the TIP and any changes in priorities from 
previous TIPs; 

(2) List major projects from the previous TIP that were implemented and identify any significant 
delays in the planned implementation of major projects; 

 (p) Projects in any of the first 4 years of the TIP may be advanced in place of another project in the first 4 
years of the TIP, subject to the project selection requirements of §450.332. In addition, the MPO may 
revise the TIP at any time under procedures agreed to by the State, MPO, and public transportation 
operator(s) consistent with the TIP development procedures established in this section, as well as the 
procedures for the MPO participation plan (see §450.316(a)) and FHWA/FTA actions on the TIP (see 
§450.330).



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Process for the Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) 

Update 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE 
FY 2021-2024 TIP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Corpus Christi Metropolitan Planning Organization 
602 N. Staples Street, Suite 300 
Corpus Christi, Texas 78401 
www.corpuschristi-mpo.org 
 

http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/


 

LIST OF 
FIGURES 

 
Figure 1. Geographic Area of Transportation Improvement Program ......................................................... 3 

 
 

LIST OF TABLES 
 

Table 1. Transportation Improvement Program Development Schedule ..................................................... 2 
Table 2. F Y 2021-2024 TIP Set-Aside Programs ........................................................................................... 9 
Table 3. Project Categories Eligible for Regional Share Funding ................................................................. 16 
Table 4. Funding Target Percentage ........................................................................................................... 19 
Table 5. Maximum Applications Corpus Christi MPO will Assist in Scoring ................................................ 21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Preparation of this report has been financed in part through grants from the Federal Transit 

Administration and the Federal Highway Administration 
of the U. S. Department of Transportation 



ii 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................1 
A. Authority of the MPO ................................................................................................................................... 1 
B. Geographic Area of the TIP ................................................................................................................................ 1 
C. Time Period of the TIP .................................................................................................................................. 2 
D. TIP Development Schedule .......................................................................................................................... 2 

II. AGENCY ROLES AND REQUIREMENTS ..................................................................................................4 
A. Agency Roles ................................................................................................................................................ 4 
B. Requirements and Commitments for All TIP Projects .................................................................................. 5 

III. INITIAL PROGRAMMING ......................................................................................................................... 8 
A. Overview, Funding Assessment, and Initial Programming ........................................................................... 8 

IV. Corpus Christi MPO CALLS FOR PROJECTS .......................................................................................... 11 
A. Requirements for All Corpus Christi MPO-Selected TIP Projects ............................................................... 11 
B. Regional Share Call for Projects ................................................................................................................. 15 
C. Subregional Share Call for Projects ............................................................................................................ 19 

V. TIP DEVELOPMENT, ADOPTION, AND REVISIONS ............................................................................... 23 
A. TIP Development ........................................................................................................................................ 23 
B. Adoption .................................................................................................................................................... 24 
C. TIP Revisions .............................................................................................................................................. 24 
D. Changes in Federal Funding Allocations ..................................................................................................... 26 

APPENDIX A CCRTA AND TxDOT SELECTION PROCESSES .............................................................................. 27 
A. CCRTA Process ........................................................................................................................................... 27 
B. TxDOT Process............................................................................................................................................ 29 

APPENDIX B  ELIGIBLE PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE ................................................................................... 32 

APPENDIX C  ELIGIBLE ROADWAY AND TRANSIT CAPACITY PROJECTS ........................................................... 34 

APPENDIX D  REGIONAL SHARE CRITERIA .................................................................................................... 36 
Part 1: Base Information .................................................................................................................................. 36 
Part 2: Evaluation Criteria, Questions, and Scoring .......................................................................................... 38 
Part 3: Project Data – Calculations and Estimates (not scored) ....................................................................... 42 



iii 

 

 

Background 
Congress requires MPOs and DOTs to invest their federal funds using performance-based planning and 
performance targets for safety, transit asset management, pavement & bridge conditions, and operational 
performance of the National Highway System (NHS). This requirement includes providing a baseline and 
tracking and reporting changes in performance so that the public can see progress toward improving each 
of the adopted metrics.  

• The Safety rule from the FHWA became effective on April 14, 2016. This rule applies to State DOTs 
and MPOs and requires each to establish targets related to five safety-related performance 
measures.  

• The Transit Asset Management rule from the Federal Transit Administration became effective on 
October 1, 2016. This rule applies to all recipients and subrecipients of Federal transit funding that 
own, operate, or manage public transportation capital assets. 

• The Pavement & Bridge condition rule from the FHWA became effective on May 20, 2017. This rule 
establishes performance measures to assess the condition of the pavements and bridges on the 
National Highway System.  

• The System Performance rule from the FHWA also became effective on May 20, 2017. This rule 
establishes performance measures to assess the travel time reliability of the NHS for both vehicles 
and freight.  

 
The adopted goals and performance metrics for the Corpus Christi MPO are found in Chapter 3 of the 
adopted 2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan.  
 
Federally funded projects in the TIP must first be included in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. The MTP 
is the document which directs transportation investments over a 25-year horizon. A TIP is the 
implementation of the projects included in the adopted MTP. The production of the TIP is the culmination 
of the regional transportation planning process and represents a consensus among state and regional 
officials for which projects are implemented. Consensus is important because the federal and state 
governments want assurances that all parties have cooperatively developed priorities before committing 
funds to a project. A project's inclusion in the TIP signifies regional agreement on the priority of the project 
and establishes federal fund eligibility.  
 
The Transportation Improvement Program is both the process for identifying projects and a funding 
document. Federal regulations, along with state and regional policies and practices, describe the process for 
selecting, modifying, and implementing projects. The TIP is the short-term investment document that lists at 
least four years of funded transportation projects. More formally, the TIP is a staged, multi-year listing of 
transportation projects with committed funding from federal, State, and local sources within Corpus Christi 
Metropolitan Area.  A new TIP is developed every two years in accordance with the metropolitan planning 
requirements set forth in the Statewide and Metropolitan Planning Final Rule (23 CFP Part 450, 49 CFP Part 
613). 
 
Securing a spot in the Corpus Christi MPO’s Transportation Improvement Program is not a simple task. 
Typically, years of study and public input precedes a project's inclusion in the TIP. Within this regulatory 
framework of metropolitan cooperation, the Texas Department of Transportation has lead responsibility 
for selecting and programming federally funded Interstate, Maintenance, Bridge, National Highway 
System, Statewide (non-metropolitan) STP, Safety, Enhancement, and certain FTA projects. An MPO can 
remove DOT-selected federally funded projects from the MTP and TIP within their Metropolitan Planning 
Area, effectively stopping the project, but the MPO cannot direct how or where most federal funding is 
spent. In all cases, projects selected to receive federal funding must make a demonstrable improvement to 
the adopted performance metrics.  

http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/01_mtp/2020-2045/Chapters/2020-2045_MTP_Chapter_3_Planning-Framework.pdf
https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/transportation-planning/statewide-plan.html
https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/transportation-planning/statewide-plan.html


iii 

 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 
The FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) programs the federally-funded 
transportation improvements and management actions conducted by the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TxDOT), the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (CCRTA), local governments, 
and other project sponsors within the Corpus Christi Metropolitan Planning Area during the four-year period 
FY 2021-2024. 

 
The 2020-2045 Corpus Christi Metropolitan Transportation Plan is the regional guide for future development 
of the region with respect to development, transportation, and the environment. One component of the 
2020-2045 MTP specifies strategies, policies, and major capital improvements that advance the objectives of 
the Corpus Christi region. The Fiscally Constrained 2020-2045 MTP defines the specific transportation 
elements and services that can be provided through the year 2020-2045 based on reasonably expected 
revenues.  

 
As required by federal and state law, the TIP must be fiscally constrained to funds expected to be available. All 
projects selected to receive federal and state surface transportation funds, and all regionally significant 
projects regardless of funding type, must be identified in the TIP.  

 
The FY 2021-2024 TIP will specifically identify and program projects for federal and state funding based on the 
MTP.  It takes the multimodal transportation vision of the MTP and begins to implement it through projects 
funded in FY 2021-2024. Just like every TIP Policy, this document can be amended by the TPC during this TIP 
cycle, and the process will be evaluated before the document is updated for the next TIP cycle.  

 
The TIP is prepared and adopted by the Corpus Christi Metropolitan Planning Organization (Corpus Christi 
MPO), the region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), in cooperation with TxDOT and the CCRTA. 
This document establishes policies and direction for developing the TIP and selecting projects to be included.  

 

A. AUTHORITY OF THE MPO 
 

 

Federal law gives MPOs the responsibility for developing and approving the regional TIP. While Corpus Christi 
MPO only directly selects projects in a limited number of funding categories, all projects with federal and state 
funding require both MPO and TxDOT review and concurrence, while transit projects must also be submitted 
for consistency with the MPO MTP. 

 

B. GEOGRAPHIC AREA OF THE TIP 
 

 

The TIP is prepared for the area shown in Figure 1. Projects must be located within the MPO boundaries (the 
black outline).  

 
 

http://metrovision.drcog.org/
http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/01_mtp.html
https://drcog.org/sites/drcog/files/resources/FINAL%20-%202040%20MVRTP%20w%20APPENDICES%20-%20April%202017.pdf
http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/01_tip.html


 

3 

Exhibit 1: Geographical Area of Transportation Improvement Program 



11 

 

 

C. TIME PERIOD OF THE TIP   
 

The four years of the FY 2021-2024 TIP contain committed, programmed projects. TIP projects may also contain 
prior and future funding for years before FY 2021 and after FY 2024. Prior and future funding is not fiscally 
constrained, and typically is used to financially align TxDOT and CCRTA planning products, in addition to Corpus 
Christi MPO-selected TIP projects that were selected outside of this TIP. 
 

Exhibit 2. Relationship between Planning Efforts 
 

 
 

  



12 

 

 

 

D. TIP DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE   
Exhibit 3 shows the process and tentative schedule for developing the FY 2021-2024 TIP. A more detailed 
schedule, along with Corpus Christi MPO funding request application forms and instructions, will be distributed 
with the solicitation for funding requests and posted on the Corpus Christi MPO website. 
 
Exhibit 3. Transportation Improvement Program Development Schedule 

 

TIP Process Element End Date 

TIP Policy Development February - March 2020 

Solicitation for Corpus Christi MPO Regional Share 
Funding Requests 

 
February - March 2020 

Required TIP Training March 2020 

Initial Evaluation and Draft Project Listing  
March - April 2020 

Draft TIP Document Preparation March - April 2019 

Draft TIP released for 1-month public comment May 7, 2020 

TAC Review of Draft TIP April – May 2020 

TPC Action for TIP Adoption June 4, 2020 

 
  



13 

 

 

 

II. AGENCY ROLES AND REQUIREMENTS 
This section identifies the funding programmed by Corpus Christi MPO, TxDOT, and Corpus Christi Regional Transit 
Authority (CCRTA), the steps taken to integrate the three processes, and common requirements for all TIP 
projects, regardless of funding source. 

 

A.  AGENCY ROLES   

Each of the three regional transportation planning partners—Corpus Christi MPO, TxDOT, and CCRTA—select 
projects for the funds over which it has authority. These three selection processes are conducted separately until 
they are integrated into a draft TIP by Corpus Christi MPO staff.  (See Section V.A for additional details.)  All project 
sponsors are strongly encouraged to discuss their potential project with relevant agencies before their funding 
requests are submitted. 

 
Corpus Christi MPO selects projects to receive Federal-Aid Highway and state funding from the following two 
programs. Please see Appendix B for examples of projects by funding source. 

• Category 7 (Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG)) 
• Category 9 (STBG Set Aside, Transportation Alternatives (TA)) 

 
CCRTA is the designated recipient for Federal Transit Funds in the Corpus Christi Urbanized Area (UZA). FTA 
apportions funds for urbanized areas to the designated recipients. As the designated recipient, CCRTA is 
responsible for receiving and apportioning FTA funds to the eligible projects within the Corpus Christi urbanized 
area. They have the principal authority and responsibility for administering Urbanized Area Formula Program 
funds within the Corpus Christi UZA. The responsibilities include: 

a. Allocating the relevant apportionment among recipients in the urbanized area or areas based on 
local needs and arrangements, and in coordination with the MPO(s); 

b. Identifying and selecting the projects (capital, operating, or planning) that the MPO or state 
department of transportation (state DOT) will include in a metropolitan transportation plan, 
transportation improvement program (TIP), long-range statewide transportation plan, statewide 
transportation improvement program (STIP), and/or unified planning work program (UPWP);  

c. Submitting a grant application for the Section 5307 program of projects (POP) and/or authorizing 
other eligible applicants to apply for all or part of the apportionment, and notifying FTA of such 
authorizations; 

d. Ensuring that the annual POP complies with the requirements that at least 1 percent of the 
apportionment is used for associated transit improvements and that at least 1 percent is used for 
public transportation security projects unless all security needs are certified to have been met; and 

e. Each designated recipient must verify that appropriate documentation of designation is on file with 
FTA and, if not, provide such documentation.  

 
TxDOT selects projects for inclusion into the TIP using a variety of federal, state, and local revenues.  Though 
not an exclusive list, the programmatic categories listed below are typically used to fund TxDOT projects. These 
programs and responsibilities for selecting projects typically evolve with each new federal transportation act.  
 



14 

 

 

 
CCRTA selects projects using a variety of federal funds and CCRTA revenues to fund regional transit system 
construction, operations, and maintenance.  The projects follow their Capital Investment Plan (CIP) for the base 
transit system. Projects are listed in the TIP under the following categories: 
• FTA Section 5307 (transit capital, operations, capital maintenance, studies) 
• FTA Section 5310 (transit capital for elderly & disabled services) 
• FTA Section 5339 (transit capital improvements) 
• Other projects using federal discretionary funds 

 

B. REQUIREMENTS AND COMMITMENTS FOR ALL TIP PROJECTS   

This section outlines any specific or special requirements necessary for a project to be placed within the TIP, 
regardless of selection agency (Corpus Christi MPO, TxDOT, or CCRTA) or funding source. 

 

1. Eligible Applicants 

Eligible applicants for Corpus Christi MPO-selected projects are listed in Section IV.A. TxDOT and CCRTA 
establish applicant eligibility for the programs for which they select projects. 

 
2. Project Eligibility 

All projects to be granted funds through the TIP must: 
• be consistent with the MTP, 
• abide by federal, state, and local laws, 
• be consistent with locally-adopted plans, and 
• have required matching funds (if any) available or reasonably expected to be available. 

 



15 

 

 

The types of projects eligible for specific funding sources have been established in the FAST (Fixing America’s 
Surface Transportation) Act and state statute. Some are further defined by each selection agency. Corpus 
Christi MPO project eligibility is defined within each Call for Projects section and further detailed in Appendix B. 

 
3. Capacity Project Eligibility 

Roadway capacity projects (e.g. widening of one mile or greater or new interchanges) must be identified in the 
Fiscally Constrained MTP (Chapter 7) of the 2020-2045 MTP (Approved in February 2020) as eligible for regional 
funding. Please see Appendix C of this document.  Note: operational roadway projects less than one mile in 
length are eligible. 

 
Transit capacity projects must be identified in the 2020-2045 MTP (Approved in February 2020).   Note: bus 
transit service and operational projects (e.g., stops, signage, Transit Signal Priority, rolling stock, queue-jump 
lanes, and similar project types) less than one mile in length are eligible. 
 
4. Eligibility Requirements of Transportation Technology Projects 

All transportation technology projects funded with federal-aid Highway funding shall be based on systems 
engineering analysis [23 CFR § 940.11 (a)]. A specific process for design, implementation, and operations & 
maintenance must be accounted for by the applicant pursuing TIP funds. The first step is the identification of 
portions of the Corpus Christi MPO regional ITS architecture being implemented. Early coordination with Corpus 
Christi MPO staff regarding the architecture is recommended. 

 
5. Freight 

In the Corpus Christi MPO selection process, freight facility, freight-related projects, roadway projects, and 
studies may benefit freight movement or freight facilities.  For example, the roadway capacity projects selected 
for the Fiscally Constrained 2020-2045 MTP were evaluated based on several criteria, including proximity to 
intermodal facilities and severity of traffic congestion, each of which is important to freight movement. Projects 
benefiting freight movement are discussed in the interagency review of projects (See Section V.A). 

 
6. Commitment to Implement Project 

Inclusion of a project in the TIP shall constitute a commitment to complete the project in a timely manner 
consistent with the years of funding identified in the TIP. 

 
Any additional funding necessary to complete the project scope beyond the already identified Corpus Christi 
MPO allocation in the TIP must be identified by the project sponsor.  If any anticipated matching funds become 
unavailable, the project sponsor must find other funds to replace them. If project costs increase on TxDOT- and 
CCRTA-selected projects, TXDOT or CCRTA may provide additional federal, state, or local funds equal to the 
increase. If project costs increase on Corpus Christi MPO-selected projects, sponsors must make up any 
shortfalls with non-Corpus Christi MPO-allocated funds. Federal guidance1 states: 
 

“The proper authorization of a project is an important early step in sound funds management.  A 
proper authorization includes a clearly defined scope of work for the applicable phase (e.g., 
preliminary engineering (PE), right-of-way (ROW), construction, etc.) with sufficient funds to 
accomplish that work recorded in the project agreement and the period of performance to accomplish 
that work.  The funding authorized in the project agreement for the applicable phase must be 
supported by a documented current cost estimate aligned with the eligible work being completed.  
The agreement must also have an identified period of performance (e.g., project start and end date 
in the agreement) for the scope of work being authorized.  

 
1 https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/cfo/projfundsmgta1.cfm 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapg/cfr0940.htm


16 

 

 

 
If a State DOT elects to use the same project agreement for more than one phase of work (i.e., use 
one Federal-aid project number), each phase should be authorized and funds obligated only when 
that phase, activity, or contract is ready to proceed.  Authorizing preliminary engineering (PE), right-
of-way (ROW), and construction costs at the same time typically should not occur as this is 
prematurely authorizing phases of work not yet ready to proceed.  
 
Effective monitoring practices include periodic reviews by the State DOT to adjust or modify the 
project agreement to reasonably reflect the current cost estimate. Periodic reviews also include 
managing inactive obligations (no expenditure activity in the previous 12 months or longer) and 
monitoring the progress of projects to the next phase of work, as appropriate.  When managing 
inactive obligations, division offices should review billing activity to ensure reimbursement requests 
are proper and are not devices solely to keep a project from becoming inactive (such as a token 
payment).  
 
A review for project inactivity should begin when a project has been inactive for 9 months.  If 
reimbursements are not processed within the next quarter, the project will be deemed as inactive at 
12 months.  The division office should work with the State DOT to remedy the inactive status before 
the project has 12 months of inactivity (i.e., process a claim for reimbursement, withdraw, or 
deobligate the project).  At this point, the division office should initiate remedial action, possibly a 
unilateral deobligation for projects determined to be improperly obligated.” 

 
All project components (within each funded TIP phase) listed within Environmental Impact Statements 
(EISs)/Records of Decision (RODs), Environmental Assessments (EAs)/Findings of No Significant Impact (FONSIs), or 
other National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) decision documents must be funded as part of the project. 

 
7. Public Involvement 

Public involvement is expected at all stages of project development and the responsibility for seeking it lies with 
the project sponsor.  For projects seeking Corpus Christi MPO-selected funding, early public input is key as the 
sponsoring agency is preparing its funding request submittal.  The Corpus Christi MPO committee review process 
through the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) and Transportation Policy Committee (TPC), and a public 
hearing provide opportunities for public comment prior to Corpus Christi MPO TPC action on adoption of the TIP 
amendments. The TIP public involvement process also serves as the public involvement process for CCRTA’s 
program of projects using FTA Section 5307 funding, and the public hearing is noticed accordingly. 

 
8. Advance Construction 
For projects selected for TIP funding, a sponsor wishing to accelerate the completion of a project with non- federal 
funds may do so through a procedure allowed by the FHWA referred to as advance construction. 
 
Through advance construction, a project sponsor can independently raise upfront capital for a project and preserve 
eligibility for future federal funding for that project. At a later point, federal funds can be obligated for 
reimbursement of the federal share to the sponsor. This technique allows projects that are eligible for federal aid to 
be implemented when the need arises, rather than when obligation authority for the federal share has been 
identified. The project sponsor may access capital from a variety of sources, including its own funds and private 
capital in the form of anticipation notes, commercial paper, and bank loans. If any sponsor wishes to advance 
construct a project in the TIP, it must seek TxDOT and FHWA permission to do so. 

  



17 

 

 

 
9. Total Project Costs 
Not all project phases may be implemented within the time‐frame of the TIP.  An additional line of information has 
been added to reflect the Total Project Cost as calculated using the TxDOT Design and Construction Information 
System (DCIS).  Information on the additional line includes: Construction, PE, ROW, Bond Finance, CE, 
Contingencies, and Indirect costs.  These estimates are based on averages and actual costs for individual projects 
may vary significantly. 
 
10. Year of Expenditure (YOE) 
Federal regulations stipulate that the TIP include financial plans that reflect YOE dollars for project cost estimates.  
For roadway construction cost, historic trends are used to determine future costs and the future revenues for a 
project. These project funds are shown in YOE dollars. YOE dollars are dollars that are adjusted for inflation from 
the present time to the expected year of construction. The annual rate of inflation for cost estimates is usually 
four percent (4%) for project costs. Using the YOE dollars produces a more accurate cost estimate for a project, 
which is used for planning, programming and implementation.  

 
 

III. CORPUS CHRISTI MPO  
INITIAL PROGRAMMING 

This section outlines the Corpus Christi MPO TIP process. 
 

A. OVERVIEW, FUNDING ASSESSMENT, AND INITIAL PROGRAMMING   
 

1. Dual Approach Overview 

There are two TIP Update elements—roll-forward and new selection. In the roll forward, funding is 
maintained for projects that were selected in previous years, without modification to the funding levels. 
However, this is an appropriate time to review cost estimates for the project to ensure that all phases of the 
project have adequate funding. See Carryover Projects, below.  

 
For new selection, projects are selected based on identified needs and project performance, with funds 
targeted to projects with the best performance. The TAC and Corpus Christi MPO staff will develop project 
prioritization and recommendations for the Corpus Christi MPO TPC. Additional details are provided in 
Section IV.  

 
2. Funding Forecast 

Corpus Christi MPO staff, in partnership with TxDOT and the CCRTA, will estimate how much funding is 
available, by funding source, for federal fiscal years 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024. The total four-year program 
funding must include the federal share of all carryover projects, set-aside programs, and other funding 
commitments as outlined below, in addition to any new funding requests (as outlined in Section IV). 

 
Corpus Christi MPO, through its calls for projects, funds projects using: 

• Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (Texas DOT Category 7).  This federal funding type is the 
most flexible and can be used for a variety of transportation projects and programs, including 
roadways, bridges, bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure, and transit. 

• STBG Set-Aside for Transportation Alternatives (Texas DOT Category 9). Federal TA funds are 



18 

 

 

primarily for bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure. 
 

The Regional Call for Projects is conducted without the applicant defining a specific funding type.  After the 
projects have been initially recommended for inclusion into the draft TIP document, staff will assign the 
appropriate funding type to each project.  Once allocated, the remaining amounts within each funding type 
will be determined and Corpus Christi MPO will inform each subregion of the targeted amount by funding 
type for their subregion. 

 
3. Carryover Projects 

Corpus Christi MPO staff will continue to fund all approved projects from previous TIPs that were delayed 
and receive permission from the Corpus Christi MPO Board of Directors to proceed. No new FY 2021-2024 
funding will be used. Instead, funding for the delayed projects will be carried over from the previous TIP. All 
projects that have been programmed but are not yet closed are included in the Roll-Forward section of the 
TIP. Current and future year projects are listed in their respective years. A project sponsor can delay or cancel 
a project as needed. A critical item to note is federal funds age and after 4 years are no longer available. 

 
4. Set-Aside Programs 

Corpus Christi MPO does not currently take funds “off-the-top” to fund specific regional programs such as ITS.  
As more performance information becomes available other MPOs have begun specifying percentages of 
Category 7 type funds for things such as; Regional Traffic Operations and Technology, Safety Enhancements, 
Complete Streets compliant Reconstruction of existing facilities, Human Service Transit, Small Area Planning, 
etc.  

 

Each set-aside program can independently develop its own eligibility requirements and criteria, including 
minimum project funding requests, along with a scoring system to recommend projects to the Corpus Christi 
MPO Board for inclusion into the TIP at appropriate times, typically every two years. If set-aside programs are 
approved; they will be managed, and Calls for Projects conducted, by Corpus Christi MPO. 

 
5. Other Commitments 

This TIP Policy intends to fund a previous commitments from prior TIP documents and approval processes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



19 

 

 

 

 

IV. CORPUS CHRISTI MPO  
CALL FOR PROJECTS 

Corpus Christi MPO evaluates and selects projects through a formal announced call for projects. This 
approach provides local values to the TIP process and maintain Corpus Christi MPO’s commitment to 
implementing a TIP process consistent with the metropolitan transportation plan. 

 

A. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL CORPUS CHRISTI MPO-SELECTED TIP 
PROJECTS 

 

 

1. Eligible Project Activities and Locations 

All projects submitted through Corpus Christi MPO must be eligible for one of the two funding types that 
Corpus Christi MPO allocates (see Appendix B) and located in and/or provide benefits to the MPO 
geographical area (see Figure 1). Detailed information is listed further on in this section. 

 
2. Projects Requiring Concurrence by TxDOT or CCRTA 

If any eligible applicant wishes to apply for any project on a state highway or within state right-of-way, they 
must have the written concurrence of TxDOT before the application deadline. Funding requests in need of 
CCRTA involvement (for either capital projects, service operations, or to access CCRTA property) must have 
the written concurrence of CCRTA.  Applicants are strongly encouraged to contact TxDOT or CCRTA early in 
the application process. 

 
3. Projects Requiring an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with TxDOT or CCRTA 

For any projects requiring the sponsor to contract with TxDOT or CCRTA to receive Corpus Christi MPO-
allocated funds, submittal of the application is an agreement by the sponsor to use the applicable IGA 
without revision. 

 

4. Eligible Applicants 

Eligible applicants for projects to be selected by Corpus Christi MPO include: 
• county and municipal governments, 
• regional agencies; such as the CCRTA, Corpus Christi MPO, specialized transit service providers, and 
• the State of Texas offices and agencies, including the Department of Transportation (TxDOT), public 

colleges, and universities.  
 

5. TIP Focus Areas 

This TIP identifies focus areas to guide investments.  The intent of the focus areas is to support 
implementation of the policies and programs established in the MTP. The following focus areas are part of the 
evaluation criteria and will guide project applicants in investment decisions.  Applicants are not required to 
propose projects within the TIP Focus Areas as they are not a project eligibility component. 



20 

 

 

 
STATE AND REGIONAL FOCUS AREAS 

 
Enhance Safety 

Safety for all users of the multimodal transportation system—and working toward reducing serious injuries 
and eliminating fatalities—is of paramount priority to every transportation stakeholder in the region. There 
are approximately 220 reported traffic crashes per day in the region, resulting in about 70 injuries per day and 
four traffic fatalities per week (more than 200 annually). 

Transportation security supports resiliency and addresses potential vulnerabilities and risks, from terrorism to 
technology (such as hacking) and natural hazards. Projects/programs may include, but are not limited to: 

o roadway geometric upgrades, including the improvement of design and operations of 
intersections, 

o improved interactions between pedestrian/bicycle modes with vehicular traffic (e.g., exclusive bike 
lanes, pedestrian/bicycle grade separations and crossings, improve line of sight, traffic calming 
improvements, etc.), and 

o Intelligent Transportation Systems applications. 

 

Preserve Our Assets 

Improving transportation infrastructure may be attained through funding transit service and other physical 
infrastructure that improve or expand access to regional services and/or facilities. Projects/programs may 
include, but are not limited to: 

o sidewalk improvements plan, 
 
 

Optimize Performance 

Having a consistently reliable multimodal transportation system is essential to the individual user experience 
and regional mobility. Reliability may be addressed through: 

o capacity improvements to any of the region’s travel modes, 

o the elimination of gaps in the system, and 

o operational improvements, such as traffic signal timing, bottleneck improvements, grade 
separations, transit service, and transportation demand management (TDM) strategies. 

 
6. Financial Requirements 

Sponsors must commit a minimum of 20% match from non-federal financial resources for Category 7, and 
Category 9 funding requests submitted for consideration. Additionally, sponsors must request a minimum of 
$100,000 in federal/state funds for any request submitted to be a candidate for Corpus Christi MPO selection. 
All submitted requests must be reflected in year of expenditure dollars using a reasonable inflation factor. 

 
7. Commitment to Implement a Project 

Inclusion of a project in the TIP shall constitute a commitment by the sponsor to complete their project in a 
timely manner. A sponsor’s submittal of a funding request for Corpus Christi MPO selection shall constitute a 
commitment to complete each project phase as described in the application form if the project is selected for 
funding.  The submitted application scope becomes a permanent part of the TIP project scope and must be 
implemented. 



21 

 

 

 
Sponsors with funding requests selected for inclusion in the TIP shall work with TxDOT or CCRTA to ensure that 
all federal and state requirements are followed, and the project follows the project phases programmed in the 
TIP.  

 
8. Next Meaningful Phase 

Most of the regionally significant roadway and transit projects in the Fiscally Constrained 2045 MTP are quite 
costly. To allow more flexibility in funding projects, applicants can submit implementation funding requests for 
only the “next meaningful phase” of such projects. The “next meaningful phase” should be jointly established by 
the sponsor, TxDOT or CCRTA, and Corpus Christi MPO staff in advance of the submittal. The functional 
implication of a “meaningful phase” is that a completed phase creates something usable, such as a NEPA 
clearance, a design, or a segment of independent utility. If additional funding is allocated to an existing project 
for new or revised project scope elements, the new scope element(s) will be added to the existing TIP project 
with funding years and project phases adjusted accordingly. 

 
9. Applicant Training 

At the initiation of the TIP Call for Projects, Corpus Christi MPO, TxDOT, and CCRTA staff shall jointly conduct a 
training workshop to cover and explain the submittal process, eligibility and evaluation, construction and 
development requirements for construction projects, sponsor responsibilities, and basic requirements for 
implementing federal projects.  Applicants are encouraged to attend the training. 

 
Outside of the training, TxDOT, CCRTA, and Corpus Christi MPO staff are available to assist jurisdictions in 
preparing funding request applications, as needed. As an outcome of this required training, those in attendance 
will become “certified” to submit TIP applications for either call.  

 
10. Corpus Christi MPO-Selected Project Phase Initiation Delays 

Corpus Christi MPO has a project tracking program that tracks the initiation of a project phase. A delay occurs when 
a project phase, as identified during project submittal and contained within the TIP project description, has not been 
initiated in the identified year. For example, a project that has only one year of Corpus Christi MPO-selected 
funding receives a delay if the project did not go to ad (construction projects), did not hold its kick-off meeting 
(studies), or didn’t conduct similar project initiation activities (other types of projects) by the end of the federal 
fiscal year for which it was programmed. For projects that have more than one year of Corpus Christi MPO-
selected funding, each phase (year) will be reviewed to see if the objectives defined for that phase have been 
initiated. 

 
Corpus Christi MPO defines the initiation of a project phase in the following manner as of September 30 for 
the year with Corpus Christi MPO-selected funding in the TIP that is being analyzed: 

• Design: AFA executed with TXDOT AND if consultant – consultant contract executed and Notice To 
Proceed (NTP) issued; if no consultant – design scoping meeting held with TXDOT project staff 

• Environmental: AFA executed with TXDOT AND if consultant – consultant contract executed and NTP 
issued; if no consultant – environmental scoping meeting held with TXDOT project staff 

• ROW: AFA executed with TXDOT AND ROW plans turned into TXDOT for initial review 
• Construction: project publicly advertised 
• Study:  AFA executed (with TXDOT or CCRTA) AND kick-off meeting has been held 
• Bus Service: AFA executed with CCRTA AND service has begun 
• Equipment Purchase (Procurement): AFA executed AND RFP/RFQ/RFB (bids) issued 
• Other: AFA executed AND at least one invoice submitted to TXDOT/CCRTA for work completed 

On October 1 (beginning of the next fiscal year), Corpus Christi MPO will review the project phase status with 



22 

 

 

TXDOT and CCRTA to determine if a delay has occurred. If a delay is encountered (project phase being 
analyzed has not been initiated by September 30), Corpus Christi MPO, along with TXDOT or CCRTA, will 
discuss the project and the reasons for its delay with the sponsor. The result will be an action plan 
enforceable by TXDOT/CCRTA, which will be reported to the Corpus Christi MPO committees and Board. For 
a sponsor that has a phase of any of its projects delayed, the sponsor must report the implementation status 
on all its Corpus Christi MPO-selected projects.  

 

Sponsors will be requested to appear before the TAC, the Corpus Christi MPO TPC to explain the reasons for the 
delay(s) and receive TAC and ultimately Corpus Christi MPO TPC approval to continue.  Any conditions 
established by the Corpus Christi MPO TPC in approving the delay become policy. 

 
On the following July 1, nine months after the project phase(s) was initially delayed, Corpus Christi MPO staff 
will review the project status with TXDOT or CCRTA to determine if the phase is still delayed. If it’s 
determined the project sponsor, as identified in the adopted TIP, is the cause of the continued delay (phase 
not being initiated by July 1), the project’s un-reimbursed Corpus Christi MPO-selected funding for the 
delayed phase will be returned to Corpus Christi MPO for reprogramming (federal funding reimbursement 
requests by the sponsor will not be allowed after July 1). 

 
If it’s determined that another agency or an outside factor beyond the control of the project sponsor not 
reasonably anticipated is the cause of the delay (phase not being initiated by July 1), the future course of 
action and penalty will be at the discretion of the TPC. 

 
Board action may include, but is not limited to: 

• Establishing a deadline for initiating the phase. 
• Cancel the phase or project funding and return to Corpus Christi MPO for reprogramming. 
• Reprogram the project funding to future years to allow other programmed projects to advance. 



23 

 

 

B.  REGIONAL CALL FOR PROJECTS   
 

1. Regional Call For Projects Intent 

The intent is to select a limited number of regional, high priority projects, programs, or studies that play a 
crucial role in shaping and sustaining the future of the Corpus Christi MPO region consistent with Corpus Christi 
MPO’s 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan.  Regional project selection is guided by the established policies 
and programs established in the MTP and should preserve optimize, enhance, etc, and provide a high return on 
investment to the region. 

 
2. Funding Availability  

Once all set-aside programs and previous commitments are allocated, the remaining funds are designated to 
new projects. For the Call for Projects, sponsors must commit a minimum of 20% match from non-federal 
financial resources for federal funding requests submitted for consideration. Additionally, sponsors must 
request a minimum of $100,000 in federal/state funds for any request submitted to be a candidate for 
Corpus Christi MPO selection. 

 
Each applicant may increase the local match and the federal/state funding request if they wish. Funding targeted 
to any one specific entity can proposed projects outside of its boundaries, to further foster collaboration. Exact 
funding levels will be available before the Call for Projects opens. 

 
For the Regional Share Call for Projects, no single request for Corpus Christi MPO-allocated funding may exceed 
$50,000,000. In addition, the Regional Share request made for Corpus Christi MPO federal or state funding may 
not exceed 50% of the total project cost submitted. Of the required match for the federal sources of funding 
(Category 7, and Category 9) 20% must be from non-federal sources to meet federal requirements.  

 
3. Eligibility Requirements 

Programs funded through Corpus Christi MPO’s Regional Process shall address mobility issues to a level that can 
definitively illustrate a “magnitude of benefits” fitting of a regional program. Participation within the proposed 
program, along with the anticipated services and benefits, must be available within the entire Corpus Christi 
MPO TIP planning area (the MPO area). Proposed studies, initiatives, and other efforts which cover the entire 
region are also eligible.  Regional programs will focus on optimizing the multimodal transportation system by 
increasing mobility and access, and/or programmatic efforts to ensure that people of all ages, incomes, and 
abilities are connected to their communities and the larger region. 

 
Projects funded through Corpus Christi MPO’s Regional Process shall include eligible transportation 
improvements that implement the elements of the 2020-2045 MTP as specified in Table 3. 



24 

 

 

Exhibit 5.  Project Categories Eligible for Regional Share Funding 
 

Eligible Networks 
2020-2045 MTP 
Specific project attributes such as start and end points, 
alignment, service levels, and number of lanes are subject to 
revision through future environmental studies. 

Eligible Projects 
Reference Maps/Table 
As adopted in MTP at time of TIP Call for Projects in 2018 

Regionally Significant Corridors (RSCs) on the 
Regional Roadway System 
(NOT ELIGIBLE: stand-alone roadway reconstruction)) 

Figure 4: Eligible Roadway Capacity projects 
identified in blue. 
Figure 5: Eligible Roadway Operational project 
locations identified in red (freeways) and gold 
major regional arterials). 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects Projects 1) from an adopted local plan or, 2) on 
or in proximity of a regional corridor or key 
multi-use trail identified on Figure 3 

Studies Any study for a project that is Corpus Christi MPO 
eligible 
(including multimodal studies per MMOF) 

Multimodal Projects 
(includes projects as defined in SB18-001 Multimodal 
Transportation Options Fund) 

Fixed route or on-demand transit (capital and 
operating costs eligible) 
TDM programs 
Multimodal mobility projects enabled by new 
technology 

For fiscally constrained roadway and transit capacity project details, see the 2020-2045 MTP. 

 

For construction projects that require an Environmental Assessment (EA) or an Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS), the EA or Draft EIS Disclosure Document must be signed, or be reasonably expected to be 
signed by the relevant federal agency within FY 2021-2024. TIP funding for a study in this TIP cycle does not 
constitute a commitment to expedite funding for implementation in a coming TIP cycle.  Funding for 
implementation will be based on relevant evaluation criteria in that (future) TIP process. 

 
4. Regional Scoring Criteria 

The scoring process is based on the 2020-2045 MTP, with modification as necessary to highlight additional 
regional benefits. 

 
5. Application Form 

Corpus Christi MPO staff will prefill basic data on application forms using data now available in the MTP and 
make TIP application materials and instructions, including supplementary data, available to all those who wish 
to apply.  Project sponsors will revise and complete the forms based on their project specific information.  

6. Applicant Training 

Training is strongly encouraged for any eligible sponsor who wishes to submit an application in the Call for 
Projects.  See Section IV.A for additional details. 

 
7. Call for Projects and Application Submittals 

The Call for Projects will be announced by Corpus Christi MPO.  Multi-agency applications are encouraged. 
Project applications from individual sponsors must be submitted on behalf of and in concurrence with 
TXDOT and CCRTA, as warranted. Each entity is permitted a maximum of three submittals. Two submittals 

https://drcog.org/sites/default/files/resources/2040%20Regional%20Roadway%20System%20for%20the%20TIP.pdf
https://drcog.org/sites/default/files/resources/Figure%204%20-%20Roadway%20Capacity%20Projects%20Eligible%20for%20TIP%20Reg%20Share.pdf
https://drcog.org/sites/default/files/resources/Figure%205%20-%20Roadway%20Operational%20Projects%20Eligible%20for%20TIP%20Reg%20Share.pdf
https://drcog.org/sites/default/files/resources/Figure%203%20-%20Bicycle%20Corridors.pdf


25 

 

 

for Category 7 and Category 9 funds are allowed from CCRTA, and two from TXDOT. 
 

Any agency contemplating applying and have data questions/needs related to the completion of the 
application, must contact Corpus Christi MPO staff at least three weeks prior to the application deadline.  
The information that is required by the sponsors to complete applications is noted within the application.  
All applications must be complete when submitted to Corpus Christi MPO as candidates for selection. 
Incomplete applications will NOT be accepted. 

 
Applications from eligible sponsors must be prepared by those that have been certified as attended the 
required training.  The application must be affirmed by either the applicant’s City or County Manager, Chief 
Elected Official (Mayor or County Commission Chair) for local governments, or agency director or equivalent 
for other applicants. 

 
8. Corpus Christi MPO Review/Scoring of Applications 

Corpus Christi MPO will review project submittals for eligibility. Corpus Christi MPO will also consult and 
share applications with TXDOT, CCRTA, and any other regional agencies as appropriate. 

 
After applications are reviewed for eligibility, Corpus Christi MPO will make a comprehensive evaluation of all 
applications submitted, before turning the applications over to the project review panel. 

 
9. Project Review Panel Consideration and Recommendation 

After all projects have been evaluated by Corpus Christi MPO, a project review panel will discuss and 
prioritize approximately 150% of the eligible funding for recommendation to the Corpus Christi MPO TPC.  

 
10. Corpus Christi MPO Board Draft Project Considerations 

The action taken by the TPC is to recommend specific projects into the draft TIP. Further action is necessary 
to finalize the project recommendations into the adopted TIP. If any funds remain unprogrammed from the 
Call for Projects they are placed in a pool in the last year of the TIP for allocation during the next call for 
projects.  
 



26 

 

 

V. TIP DEVELOPMENT, ADOPTION, AND 
REVISIONS 

This section describes the processes for developing the draft TIP, adoption, and how amendments to the 
adopted TIP happen. 

 

A. TIP DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

1. Peer and Interagency Discussion 

Applicants are encouraged to discuss potential funding requests with the MPO, TXDOT and/or CCRTA as 
appropriate as early as possible.  As a minimum, this discussion should take place for any submittal for which 
TXDOT or CCRTA concurrence is required (see Section IV.A).  Sponsors may also benefit from discussing other 
potential submittals that do not need their concurrence to better understand the implications of federal and 
state requirements on a specific submittal. 

 
After the completion of the Call for Projects, staff from Corpus Christi MPO, TXDOT, and CCRTA will discuss 
preliminary recommendations, as well as requests not selected. The objective of this discussion is to look for 
conflicts, synergies, and opportunities among projects. Each agency may consider feedback to revise 
selection decisions or adjust implementation scheduling. 

 
2. Illustrative List 

Projects not funded are incorporated into the TIP via the Illustrative list. Illustrative list projects may be 
funded in the event additional funding becomes available during the TIP time period. The waiting list protocol 
and lists of projects will be amended into the TIP after it is adopted.  

 
3. Draft TIP Preparation 

After the Board has made preliminary funding recommendations on projects, Corpus Christi MPO staff will 
prepare a draft TIP. The draft program will be referred to the TAC and RTC for recommendations and made 
available for public comment at a public hearing by the Corpus Christi MPO Transportation Policy Committee. 

 
The TIP will include: 

• all Corpus Christi MPO-selected, CCRTA, and TXDOT federally-funded projects, 
• all TXDOT state-funded projects, and 
• any regionally significant transportation projects, regardless of funding source. 

 
The TIP will demonstrate adequate resources are available for program implementation. It will indicate public 
and private resources that are reasonably expected to be available to carry out the program. The Texas 
Department of Transportation (TxDOT), in consultation with the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), 
developed 11 grouped project categories for use in the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Chapter 23 part 450.216 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations defines the general grouping of projects as:  
 

“Projects that are not considered to be of appropriate scale for individual identification in a given 
program year may be grouped by function, work type and/or geographic area using the applicable 
classifications under 23 CFR 771.117(c) and (d) and/or 40 CFR part 93. In addition, projects 
proposed for funding under title 23 U.S.C. Chapter 2 that are not regionally significant may be 
grouped in one line item or identified individually in the TIP.”  



27 

 

 

During the development of the FY 2021-2024 TIP, the Corpus Christi Metropolitan Planning Organization uses 
project grouping categories to allow the TIP to more appropriately focus on the most regionally significant 
projects. It also allows for a more streamlined process for projects undergoing development as it considerably 
reduces delays and allows for a more efficient method of scheduling and letting projects. The Transportation 
Policy Committee will review and authorize the which of the 11 available grouped categories for use. The 
Corpus Christi MPO staff will review each project submitted for inclusion in the TIP to determine project 
eligibility for grouping. Regardless of eligibility, selection for inclusion in the grouped listing is at the discretion 
of TPC. 
 
Exhibit 6: Projects Eligible for Grouping 



28 

 

 

B.  ADOPTION   
 

1. Public Involvement and Hearings 

A public hearing to consider the draft TIP finding will be held at the TPC meeting one month prior to 
anticipated TPC action in adopting a new TIP or making major amendments to an existing TIP. 

 
2. TIP Adoption 

Adoption of the TIP by the Transportation Policy Committee shall occur following consideration and 
recommendation by the TAC. Once the TIP is approved by Corpus Christi MPO federal law requires the TIP also be 
approved by the Governor and incorporated directly, without modification, into the STIP by TxDOT. 

 

C. TIP REVISIONS   

The TIP is subject to revision, either by an administrative modification by staff, or through TIP amendments 
adopted by the Corpus Christi MPO Policy Committee. Revisions reflect project changes that may affect the 
TIP’s programming. Listed below are two levels of revisions that can be made to the TIP. 

 
Corpus Christi MPO staff will process any Administrative Modification by: 
• requesting TIP revisions at the end of every quarter, typically the 3rd Monday of the month, 
• entering the requested modifications into the TIP project database and appropriate committee 

agenda materials, 
• posting the revisions on the Corpus Christi MPO website, and 
• emailing a monthly summary to the TIP modification list. 

 
1. TIP Amendments 

The MPO may amend the TIP as necessary to address regional needs; there are also several circumstances in 
which an amendment to the TIP is required. Adding a federally funded project or changing the major source of 
funding of an existing project are situations that mandate amendments to the TIP. TIP amendments are required 
for the following actions: 
• Adding a new project or significantly changing an existing project  
• Changing a regionally significant project: 

o delete or significantly change a feature (for example, change the project termini) 
o delete or defer it from the four years of the TIP, 

• Changing a project to be inconsistent with the goals of the MTP, 
• Adding or deleting funding for any project by more than $1.5 million over the four years of the TIP, 
• Changes as deemed by the Corpus Christi MPO Transportation Planning and Operations Director and/or 

Executive Director.  
 

TIP amendments will be processed as soon as possible after they are received, considering committee 
schedules. TIP amendments will be recommended by the TAC for Corpus Christi MPO TPC consideration and 
action. Formal public hearings are not typically held. Public input (in person, writing, email, etc.) will be 
accepted per the adopted Corpus Christi MPO Public Participation Plan, and during the public comment period 
of any of the committee or Board meetings considering the amendments. 

 
TIP amendments requiring a new conformity finding may only be processed once a year, concurrent with the 
MTP process. These major amendments are subject to formal public hearings by the Corpus Christi MPO Board 
prior to TAC for TPC adoption. 

 
 



29 

 

 

TxDOT 50% Rule 
An amendment to the TIP is also required when changes in an estimated federal cost exceeds 50 percent and 
results in a revised total cost exceeding $1,499,000. A STIP revision is not required when a change in estimated 
federal cost results in a total project cost of under $1,500,000. Note that the 50 percent rule applies only to the 
federal-aid share of the project cost, while the greater than $1,499,000 applies to the total cost of the increase of 
the project revision. 
 

2. Administrative Modifications 

Administrative modifications include all revisions other than those listed under TIP Amendments and will be 
processed as they are received by Corpus Christi MPO staff, typically monthly. Administrative modifications do 
not require committee review or approval. However, administrative modifications are presented to the Board 
as informational items.  

 
As stated in Section IV.A.7, there is an expectation that Corpus Christi MPO-selected projects will be 
implemented, at a minimum, with the scope defined in the funding request application (and in the adopted TIP). 
Sometimes sponsors desire to remove scope elements within the same budget.  If this is the case, projects 
selected must have confirmation from the TPC to remove scope elements. If the TPC agrees to the scope changes, 
Corpus Christi MPO staff will process the request as an administrative modification. 

 
In circumstances when the revisions are to add items to the scope within the current project budget (i.e. when 
project costs were less than expected), or if the request to add scope is a meaningful addition to the project and 
the cost is modest (in comparison to the overall budget), Corpus Christi MPO staff will concur with the request 
and may process the request as an administrative modification.  

 
3. Project Cancelations 

In the event a TIP project is cancelled by the project sponsor or project savings are realized and funding is 
returned to Corpus Christi MPO for reprogramming, the funding will return to the regional pool for reallocation.   
It is important to remember that funding is not awarded to entities; projects that perform best in meeting 
regional, state, and federal goals are funded. If that project is not implemented as approved, the funds are 
returned back to the MPO TPC for reallocation to other projects that perform best in meeting regional, state or 
federal goals.  

 

D. CHANGES IN FUNDING ALLOCATIONS   
 

Under the FAST Act and state statue, actual allocations to the state and region are determined annually with 
no guaranteed amount. The FY 2021-2024 TIP is being prepared under the best estimate of available funds to 
TXDOT, Corpus Christi MPO, and CCRTA. As funds change, it may be necessary to add, advance, or postpone 
projects through TIP revisions. 

 
1. Funding Increase 

If revenues increase, the additional revenues will be allocated to projects as follows: 
• First, existing funds will be advanced for projects already awarded funds in the TIP, as applicable. In some 

circumstances, funds may be flexed between categories to advance projects. 
• After options for advancing currently funded projects have been exhausted, the funding may be pooled 

until the next Call for Projects. Alternatively, if opportunities exist that may be lost by delay, one or more 
of the projects in the illustrative list may be advanced with remaining monies. 

 

 



30 

 

 

2. Funding Decrease 

If revenues decrease, some TIP projects will be deferred to maintain fiscal constraint. The method to obtain 
deferrals is as follows: 

 
Step 1 - Voluntary Deferrals 

Corpus Christi MPO staff will first query project sponsors to discern if they will voluntarily defer one or more 
of their current TIP projects.  Any project deferred will NOT be subject to involuntary deferral at a later date. 

Step 2 - Involuntary Deferrals 

If voluntary deferrals are insufficient, involuntary deferrals are necessary. 
A. Corpus Christi MPO staff will FIRST create lists of relevant projects that will be EXEMPT from 

involuntary deferral according to the following: 
• Previously granted project immunity 
• Project readiness (projects, regardless of sponsor, that are or will be ready for ad in the next 3 

months, as jointly determined by TxDOT/CCRTA and the sponsor) 
 

B. Corpus Christi MPO staff will query the project review panel to submit to Corpus Christi MPO projects 
that either were the lowest scored or have the lowest priority to be deferred.  Any project deferral, 
either voluntary or involuntary, will not be counted as a project delay. 



31 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
CCRTA and TXDOT Selection Processes 
This section describes the processes that CCRTA and TXDOT undertake to include projects into the TIP. 

 
 

A. CCRTA PROCESS 
 

 



32 

 

 

B. TxDOT PROCESS 
  

 

1. Basic Underlying Premises 
 

Projects that are currently funded in the TIP, along with ones that are part of a NEPA decision document 
commitment, will have a top priority and will continue to be funded. TXDOT Corpus Christi District 
provided documentation to Corpus Christi MPO describing the evaluation criteria, assumptions and 
underlying rationale for projects selected for funding. 

 
2. Detail by Funding Program 

 

Category 1 –Preventive Maintenance and Rehabilitation: Preventive maintenance and rehabilitation on 
the existing state highway system, including: (A) Preventive maintenance - minor roadway modifications 
to improve operations and safety; and (B) Rehabilitation - installation, rehabilitation, replacement, and 
maintenance of pavement, bridges, traffic control devices, traffic management systems, and ancillary 
traffic devices. Funds are formula allocated. The Proposition 1 (Prop 1) amendment authorizes a portion 
of oil and gas tax revenues that typically go into the Economic Stabilization (Rainy Day) Fund to be 
deposited to the State Highway Fund. Funds may be spent to engineer, acquire right-of-way, move 
utilities, construct, and maintain public highways (transit, bicycle/pedestrian, and toll roads are 
ineligible). Projects must be on the Interstate Highway System or on the State Highway System.  
  
Category 2 –Metropolitan and Urban Corridor Projects: Mobility and added capacity projects along a 
corridor that decrease travel time and the level or duration of traffic congestion and increase the safe 
and efficient movement of people and freight in metropolitan and urbanized areas.  
  
This category is split into two types of funding. Metropolitan Corridor (2M) projects are within the 
boundaries of a Transportation Management Area (TMA) like Corpus Christi. Urban Corridor Projects 
(2U) are in areas outside of a Transportation Management Area (non-TMA) like southern Nueces County. 
Funds are formula allocated. These funds are generally approved through the Unified Transportation 
Program (UTP) or 10-Year Planning process.  
 
The Proposition 1 (Prop 1) amendment authorizes a portion oil and gas tax revenues that typically go 
into the Economic Stabilization Fund to be deposited to the State Highway Fund. Funds may be spent to 
engineer, acquire right-of-way, move utilities, construct, and maintain public highways (transit, 
bicycle/pedestrian, and toll roads are ineligible). Projects must be on the Interstate Highway System or 
on the State Highway System. This category includes Prop 1 projects selected using the Category 2 
metropolitan corridor formula and criteria. 
 
Category 3 –Non-Traditionally Funded Transportation Projects: Transportation related projects that 
qualify for funding from sources not traditionally part of the state highway fund, including state bond 
financing under programs such as Proposition 12 (General Obligation Bonds), Proposition 14, pass-
through toll financing, unique federal funding (like TIGER discretionary funds), regional toll revenue, 
TPC/Local funds, and local participation funding.  
  
Below is additional information about several of these sub-categories:   

• Regional Toll Revenue (RTR) funds include toll proceeds from toll project agreements. 
RTR funds may include up-front payments by tolling entity, excess revenue payment 
by tolling entity, or interest accrued on these funds. RTR funds can be spent on state 
highway system, public transit, or air quality projects. They are selected by the RTC 



33 

 

 

with strong participation levels from local agencies (cities, counties, etc.). The Texas 
Transportation Commission has final approval via minute order.   

• TPC/Local funds are local funds created by and available to the TPC. The funds are 
general created through federal/local funding swaps. Projects are selected by the TPC.  

 
Category 4 –Statewide Connectivity Corridor Project: Mobility and added capacity projects on major 
state highway system corridors, which provide statewide connectivity between urban areas and 
corridors, to create a highway connectivity network composed of the Texas Highway Trunk System, 
National Highway System, and connections from those two systems to major ports of entry on 
international borders and Texas water ports. Generally used in rural (non-urban) areas.  
 
The Prop 1 amendment authorized a portion of oil and gas tax revenues that typically go into the 
Economic Stabilization Fund to be deposited to the State Highway Fund. Funds may be spent to 
engineer, acquire right-of-way, move utilities, construct, and maintain public highways (transit, 
bicycle/pedestrian, and toll roads are ineligible). Projects must be on the Interstate Highway System or 
on the State Highway System. This category includes Prop 1 projects selected using the Category 4 
statewide connectivity corridor formula and criteria. 
 
The Congestion Connectivity Corridor (3C) program is designed to provide connectivity for interstates 
and major freight/trade corridors, and enables the use of Category 4 funds in urban areas. Projects 
should be prioritized and selected based on criteria consistent with House Bill 20. Funds are formula 
allocated using the Category 2 formula. Projects are selected by the TxDOT District in consultation with 
the MPO. 

 
Category 5 –Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program: The Corpus Christi MPO is 
NOT eligible for these funds. Designed for air quality or transit projects that address attainment of 
national ambient air quality standards in the nonattainment areas (currently Dallas-Fort Worth, Houston, 
and El Paso). Funds cannot be used to add capacity for single-occupancy vehicles. Projects selected by 
the MPO in consultation with TxDOT. Funds are formula allocated. 
 
Category 6 –Bridges: Replacement or rehabilitation of eligible bridges on and off the State Highway 
System (functionally obsolete or structurally deficient). Replacement of existing highway-railroad grade 
crossings, and the rehabilitation or replacement of deficient railroad underpasses on the State Highway 
System. Specific locations evaluated by a cost-benefit derived index. 
 
Category 7 –Surface Transportation Block Group Program (STBG): Designed for mobility (roadway or 
transit) and air quality projects that address transportation needs within Metropolitan Area boundaries 
with populations of 200,000 or greater. Projects are selected by the MPO in consultation with TxDOT. 
Funds are formula allocated. 

 
Category 8 –Safety: Safety related projects both on and off the state highway system including the 
federal Highway Safety Improvement Program, Railway-Highway Crossing Program, Safety Bond 
Program, and High Risk Rural Roads Program. Safe Routes To School projects previously authorized 
remain in Category 8, but new Safe Routes to School projects are managed under the Transportation 
Alternatives Program in Category 9.   
 
Category 9 –Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP), and Transportation Alternative – Set Aside 
Program: Federal aid program for the construction of on-road and off-road trail facilities for pedestrian, 
bicycle, and other non-motorized forms of transportation, including sidewalks, bicycle infrastructure, 
pedestrian and bicycle signals, traffic calming techniques, lighting and other safety-related infrastructure, 



34 

 

 

and transportation projects to achieve compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
  
This program also includes the Safe Routes to Schools Program. Projects are selected through 
competitive calls for projects at the regional and state levels. Funds are formula allocated. Under the 
FAST Act, the State/MPO 50/50 Allocation continues. The Corpus Christi MPO selects a portion of TA 
funds and TxDOT selects another portion. 
 
Category 10 –Supplemental Transportation Projects: Transportation related projects that do not qualify 
for funding in other categories, including landscape and aesthetic improvement, erosion control and 
environmental mitigation, construction and rehabilitation of roadways within or adjacent to state parks, 
fish hatcheries, and similar facilities, replacement of railroad crossing surfaces, maintenance of railroad 
signals, construction or replacement of curb ramps for accessibility to pedestrians with disabilities, and 
miscellaneous federal programs. Previous federal earmarks often appear in this funding category. Green 
Ribbon funds would also appear under Category 10.  
 
Category 11 –District Discretionary: Miscellaneous projects on the State Highway System selected at the 
TxDOT district’s discretion. The Proposition 1 (Prop 1) amendment authorized a portion of oil and gas tax 
revenues that typically go into the Economic Stabilization Fund to be deposited to the State Highway 
Fund. Funds may be spent to engineer, acquire right-of-way, move utilities, construct, and maintain 
public highways (transit, bicycle/pedestrian, and toll roads are ineligible). Projects must be on the 
Interstate Highway System or on the State Highway System. This category includes Prop 1 projects 
selected using the Category 11 district discretionary formula and criteria. 
 
Category 12 –Strategic Priority : Projects with specific importance to the State including those that 
generally promote economic opportunity, increase efficiency on military deployment routes or retain 
military assets in response to the federal military base realignment and closure reports, maintain the 
ability to respond to both manmade and natural emergencies, and provide pass-through toll financing 
for local communities.  
 
Strategic Priority – Clear Lanes provides funding for congestion relief projects in metropolitan areas with 
over 1 million in population, which includes Austin, Dallas, Fort Worth, Houston, and San Antonio. 
Projects in this category should be listed on the Top 100 Most Congested Roadways list. These funds are 
formula allocated, but selected by the Texas Transportation Commission. 
 
SBPE – TxDOT PE Funds: TxDOT uses these for engineering/design services for projects on the state 
highway system.  
 
S102 – TxDOT PE Funds: TxDOT uses these for right-of-way acquisition or utility relocation for projects on 
the state highway system. 



35 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
Eligible Projects by Funding Source 

The funding categories established by the FAST Act and the types of projects eligible for funding within 
each category, provided they are consistent with the MTP, are summarized below. 

 

1. Category 7 - Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program 
 

The following types of projects are eligible: 
• Construction/reconstruction, rehabilitation, resurfacing, restoration, preservation, and operational 

improvements of the existing system (located on the Corpus Christi MPO Regional Roadway System; 
roadway classification of principal arterial and higher) 

• Capital costs for transit projects 
• Vehicle to infrastructure communication equipment 
• Carpool projects 
• Fringe and corridor parking facilities and program 
• Highway and transit safety infrastructure improvements and programs 
• Highway and transit research programs 
• Capital and operating costs for traffic monitoring, management, and control 
• Transportation alternatives activities 
• Transportation control measures listed in the Clean Air Act 
• Wetland mitigation associated with project construction 
• Transportation system management actions 
• Studies as necessary to plan and implement the above 

 

Detailed guidance is available at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/stbgfs.pdf 
 

2. Category 9 - Transportation Alternatives (TA) 
 

The following types of projects are eligible: 
• Construction, planning, and design of on- road and off-road trail facilities and related infrastructure 
• Conversion and use of abandoned railroad corridors for trails 
• Turnouts, overlooks, and viewing areas 
• Community improvement activities (outdoor advertising, historic 

transportation facilities, vegetation management practices, archaeological activities) 
• Environmental mitigation activity (stormwater management, vehicle-caused wildlife mortality) 
• Recreational trails program 
• Safe routes to school program

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/stbgfs.pdf


36 

 

 

APPENDIX C 
Eligible Roadway and Transit Capacity Projects 
The following regionally-funded capacity projects from the currently-adopted Corpus Christi MPO Fiscally 
Constrained 2020-2045 MTP are eligible to be submitted in the FY 2021-2024 TIP. Projects or project segments 
already funded with Corpus Christi MPO funds in previous TIPs have been removed. 

 
New 

TXDOT Through Project Cost 
County Roadway Route # Project Location/Limits Improvement Type Lanes ($000) 

  Corpus Christi MPO-funded Regional Roadway Capacity Projects   

       

       

       

       

       

       

     
 

 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       



37 

 

 

 

New 
TXDOT Through Project Cost 

County Roadway Route # Project Location/Limits Improvement Type Lanes ($000) 

  TXDOT-funded Regional Roadway Capacity Projects   

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

     
 

 

       

   
 

   

       

       

       

   
    



38 

 

 

APPENDIX D 
Regional Scoring Criteria 

 
 

 

PART 1: BASE INFORMATION 
 

 

 
 
 

Corpus Christi MPO  
FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)  

Project Submission Form 
Project Name  

 
Project Description.  Provide all relevant information to FULLY describe the project scope and location.  Attach 
diagram or map showing location/extent of project if necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sponsoring Entity(ies):  
Project Category(ies) – (road, transit, 
bicycle/pedestrian, etc.): 

 
 

Existing Conditions (# lanes, surface, 
service provided, etc.): 

 
 

Proposed Conditions (# lanes, surface, 
service provided, etc.): 

 
 

Desired/Expected Completion Timeframe (Federal Fiscal Year) 

Project/Program/Study Application and Evaluation Criteria Instructions 
 
• Sponsors of applications must complete the base information (Part 1), provide responses to the 

evaluation questions (Part 2), and provide back-up data calculation estimates (Part 3). 

• Corpus Christi MPO staff will review submitted applications for eligibility and score the eligible 
submittals. A project review panel will review, rank, and recommend submittals that request funding 
to the TAC and TPC.  Sponsors will make presentations to the project review panel to assist in the final 
recommendation to the Corpus Christi MPO TPC. 

All sponsors are required to submit foundational information for their project/program/study (hereafter referred 
to as project) including a problem statement, project description, and concurrence documentation from TxDOT 
and/or CCRTA, if applicable. Each proposed project will be reviewed to determine eligibility under federal 
requirements and consistency with regional policies prior to being considered for Regional Share funding.  Part 1 
is not given a score. 



39 

 

 

FY 2021  
FY 2022  
FY 2023  
FY 2024  

Project Cost (Enter amount(s) requested) 
Cat 2 (Metropolitan and Urban Corridors)  
Cat 4 (Connectivity Corridors)  
Cat 7 (Metropolitan Mobility and Rehabilitation  
Cat 9 (Transportation Alternatives)  
Cat 11 (District Discretionary)  
Cat 12 (Strategic Priority)  
Safe Route to School  
FTA 3507  
FTA 3509  
FTA 3510  
FTA 3511  
Other Federal Funds (BUILD, ATCMDT, etc.)  
Other State Funds (RIDER, etc.)   
Local Funds (Bond, Proposition, etc.)  
Project Cost (Federal Funds)  
Local/State/Private Funds  
Project Cost (Total)  
% Local Match  

Point of Contacts 
Name  Name  
Address  Address  
Phone  Phone  
E-mail  E-mail  

 

1. Name of Project:    
2. Project start and end points, or geographic area (include map): 

 
 

3. Project Sponsor:    
4. Facility Owner/Operator:     

If Owner/Operator is different from project sponsor, attach applicable 
concurrence documentation. 

5. What planning document(s) identifies this project:    
6. Identify the project’s key elements.  Applicants will provide the benefit information in the evaluation in 

relation to the key elements checked. (check all that apply): 
 Transit other:    
  Bicycle facility 
  Pedestrian facility 

  Safety improvements 
  Roadway Capacity or Managed Lanes (Fiscally Constrained 2045 MTP) 
  Roadway Operational 
  Grade Separation 
  Roadway 



40 

 

 

  Railway 
  Bicycle 
  Pedestrian 
  Roadway Pavement reconstruction/rehab 
  Bridge replace/reconstruct/rehab 
  Study 
  Design 
  Other:    

7. Problem statement: What specific regional problem or issue will the transportation project address?  
 

8. Define the scope and specific elements of the project:    
9. What is the current status of the proposed project?    
10. Would a smaller funding amount than requested be acceptable, while maintaining the original intent of 

the project?)    
If yes, define smaller meaningful limits, size, service level, phases, or scopes, along with the cost 
for each:     

11. Total amount of federal funding request: $ (no greater than $10 
million) 

12. Total amount of funding provided by other funding partners (private, local, state, or federal), with 
documentation. Please list each funding partner, contribution amount, and percent of each 
contribution to the overall total project cost: $   

13. Total Project Cost: $   
14. Year by year breakdown of funding request and project phase to be initiated: 

 
 

 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 Total 

Corpus Christi 
MPO 
R  

     

Match      

Total 
Funding 

     

Phase to be 
Initiated 

     



41 

 

 

PART 2: EVALUATION CRITERIA, QUESTIONS, AND SCORING   
 

 
 

A. Board-approved Performance Measures (weight X%) 
 

B. Consistency and Contributions with Focus Areas (weight Y%) 
 

  

This part includes four sections (A-D) for the applicant to provide qualitative and quantitative responses for the 
project review panel to use for scoring projects. Each section will be scored using a scale of ___. Each section is 
weighted as indicated. 



42 

 

 

PART 3: PROJECT DATA – CALCULATIONS AND ESTIMATES    
 
 



2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

Corpus Chris� Metropolitan Planning Organiza�on (MPO) Projects

chapter 7. implementation plan7-5

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project Lists

Corpus Chris� Metropolitan Planning Organiza�on (MPO) Projects

chapter 7. implementation plan 7-62020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

chapter 7. implementation plan2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan7-7

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

Shallow Creek Drive Wood Creek Drive

chapter 7. implementation plan 7-82020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

chapter 7. implementation plan2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan7-9

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

chapter 7. implementation plan 7-102020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

Repair/Rehabilitate Storage Building 

South Country Club Place

Chippewa Street Lou Street

chapter 7. implementation plan2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan7-11

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

Taxilane - Apron for T-Hanger Compliance

chapter 7. implementation plan 7-122020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

chapter 7. implementation plan2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan7-13

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

chapter 7. implementation plan 7-142020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

chapter 7. implementation plan2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan7-15

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Texas Department of Transporta�on - Corpus Chris� District Office Funded Projects

Overlay 21,000 yd  parking lot surface
2

Exhibit 7-2. Table of the Fiscally Constrained Project List

chapter 7. implementation plan 7-162020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

Agenda Item #5A - Attachment 4



Agenda Item #5B 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:  February 14, 2020 
To:  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
From:  Craig Casper, Senior Transportation Planner 
Through: Robert MacDonald, Transportation Planning Director 
Subject: Item 5B:  FY 2021-2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) Development 
Action:  Discussion 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 

Each metropolitan planning organization (MPO) is required, under 23 CFR Sec. 450.314, and in 
cooperation with the State and operators of publicly owned transit, to develop a Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP) that meets the requirements of 23 CFR Part 420, subpart A. This part prescribes the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) policies and procedures for administering activities undertaken 
by State departments of transportation (State DOTs) and their subrecipients, including metropolitan 
planning organizations (MPOs), with FHWA planning and research funds. Subpart A identifies the 
administrative requirements that apply when using FHWA planning and research funds. The UPWP will:  

“(1) Discuss the planning priorities facing the metropolitan planning area and describe 
all metropolitan transportation planning activities (including the corridor and subarea 
studies discussed in Sec. 450.318) anticipated within the area during the next one or two 
year period, regardless of funding sources or agencies conducting activities, in sufficient 
detail to indicate who will perform the work, the schedule for completing it and the 
products that will be produced; 

(2) Document planning activities to be performed with funds provided under title 23, 
U.S.C., and the Federal Transit Act.” 

Background 

If the FHWA determines that planning activities and the requirements of 23 U.S.C. 134, 135, 303, and 
505 are being adequately addressed, the FHWA will allow State DOTs and MPOs: 

(1) Maximum possible flexibility in the use of FHWA planning and research funds to meet 
highway and local public transportation planning and RD&T needs at the national, State, and 
local levels while ensuring legal use of such funds and avoiding unnecessary duplication of 
efforts; and 

(2) To determine which eligible planning and RD&T activities they desire to support with FHWA 
planning and research funds and at what funding level. 

The above description does not remove the FHWA's responsibility and authority to determine which 
activities are eligible for funding. Activities proposed to be funded with FHWA planning and research 
funds by the State DOTs and MPOs shall be documented and submitted for FHWA approval and 
authorization as prescribed in §§420.111 and 420.113.  



Agenda Item #5B 

The State DOTs shall make all PL funds authorized by 23 U.S.C. 104(f) available to the MPOs in 
accordance with a formula developed by the State DOT, in consultation with the MPOs, and approved by 
the FHWA Division Administrator. The formula may allow for a portion of the PL funds to be used by the 
State DOT, or other agency agreed to by the State DOT and the MPOs, for activities that benefit all 
MPOs in the State, but State DOTs shall not use any PL funds for grant or subgrant administration. The 
formula may also provide for a portion of the funds to be made available for discretionary grants to 
MPOs to supplement their annual amount received under the distribution formula. 

In developing the formula for distributing PL funds, the State DOT shall consider population, status of 
planning, attainment of air quality standards, metropolitan area transportation needs, and other factors 
necessary to provide for an appropriate distribution of funds to carry out the requirements of 23 U.S.C. 
134 and other applicable requirements of Federal law. 

The State DOTs shall inform the MPOs and the FHWA Division Office of the amounts allocated to each 
MPO as soon as possible after PL funds have been apportioned by the FHWA to the State DOTs. 

Proposed use of FHWA planning and research funds must be documented by the State DOTs and MPOs 
in a work program, or other document that describes the work to be accomplished, and is acceptable to 
the FHWA Division Administrator. Statewide, metropolitan, other transportation planning activities may 
be documented in separate programs, paired in various combinations, or brought together as a single 
work program. A work program(s) for transportation planning activities must include a description of 
work to be accomplished and cost estimates by activity or task. In addition, each work program must 
include a summary that shows: 

(i) Federal share by type of fund; 
(ii) Matching rate by type of fund; 
(iii) State and/or local matching share; and 
(iv) All other State or local funds. 

The State DOTs and MPOs also are encouraged to include cost estimates for transportation planning and 
technology transfer related activities funded with other Federal or State and/or local funds; particularly 
for producing the FHWA-required data specified in paragraph (b) of §420.105, for planning for other 
transportation modes. The MPOs designated as TMAs must include this information in their work 
programs. (The information collection requirements in §§420.111 have been approved by the OMB and 
assigned control numbers 2125-0039 for States and 2132-0529 for MPOs.) 

The MPO's policy board must approve the MPO's proposed UPWP. After receiving the policy board's 
approval, the MPO submits the approved draft simultaneously to the district, TPP, and TxDOT’s Public 
Transportation Division (PTN). The three departmental offices coordinate, review, and comment on the 
MPO's draft UPWP. The department sends suggestions to the MPO. 

TPP coordinates the federal approval process of the UPWP with FHWA/FTA. After receiving the federal 
approvals, the UPWP is incorporated by reference into the existing planning contract (Article 7.1). This 
incorporation occurs when the approved UPWP refers to the existing, executed planning contract. 

The effective date of each UPWP is October 1 of each year or the FHWA/FTA date of approval, 
whichever occurs later. Upon the effective date, the UPWP constitutes a new federal program and 
supersedes the previous UPWP. After October 1 of each year, TPP issues a letter of authorization 
establishing the effective date of work and the funds authorized to the MPO. 

TxDOT, in cooperation with the Association of Texas Metropolitan Planning Organizations (TEMPO), has 
developed a standard UPWP format to be used in accordance with 43 TAC §15.4(a)(4). A UPWP 
submitted in a different format will not be approved. We are providing the link to the existing FY 2019-
FY 2020 UPWP for your review as to format and general description of the program elements and 
budget. 

http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/01_upwp/fy2019-2020/Approved_FY2019-2020_UPWP_20180503.pdf
http://www.corpuschristi-mpo.org/01_upwp/fy2019-2020/Approved_FY2019-2020_UPWP_20180503.pdf


Agenda Item #6A 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:  February 14, 2020 
To:  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
From:  Robert MacDonald, Transportation Planning Director 
Subject: Item 6A: Corpus Christi International Airport (CCIA) Freight Information   
Action:  Information Only 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 

The TAC serves as the MPO’s Freight Advisory Committee to discuss various aspects of freight planning 
for the region.  We have provided information for the TAC over the years to include webinars, training 
opportunities through FHWA and TxDOT related to freight items as well as specific items of freight 
planning from the local governments and partner agencies.  This month, we are highlighting the freight 
information from the Corpus Christi International Airport (CCIA) that was contained in the recently 
adopted 2020-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP).  We encourage the TAC members to 
review the information and engage in a discussion of this particular topic. 

Excerpt from the 2020-2045 MTP 

Capital improvements for the Corpus Christi International Airport (CCIA) are primarily developed in 
accordance with the Airport Master Plan and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) grant funding 
process. The Master Plan establishes a program for improvement of existing facilities and the 
development of additional facilities over a twenty (20) year period. The current Airport Master Plan is 
scheduled for an overall update beginning in October 2020. 

The Proposed FY 2019-20 Airport Capital Improvement Program reflects a continued focus on the on-
going phasing of the East General Aviation Apron Rehabilitation and Air Carrier Ramp Reconstruction 
Projects. These two projects continue the directed commitment to airside-safety pavement 
improvements and rehabilitation of select terminal areas. Year 1 of the Capital Program also reflects the 
initial phase of work on airport terminal building rehabilitation program based on recommendations 
from the Terminal Building Assessment report. The airport is concurrently working with the FAA in 
hopes of securing Supplemental Appropriation funds for the rehabilitation of the Terminals Passenger 
Boarding Bridges, escalator and elevator. Other planned projects will focus on the parking areas for 
Transportation Network Company (TNC) staging and the Quick Turn Around (QTA) Facility which 
consolidates all on-airport rental car maintenance and servicing. The QTA has been in operations since 
2011 and the improvements will rehabilitate the car wash and associated equipment. 

Years 2 and 3 of the Airport Short-Range Capital Improvement Plan include projects that continue 
improvements to the airport pavement infrastructure. The East General Aviation Apron rehabilitation 
will continue as well as the reconstruction of the current air carrier ramp. Also included are plans for 
parking lot improvements, and replacement of an additional Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting (ARFF) vehicle. 
Airport staff continues negotiations for several business development options including the construction 
and operation of general aviation facilities and other revenue generating ventures such as a 



Agenda Item #6A 

convenience store and hotel development. Those potential projects will be reflected in future Capital 
Budgets as agreements are executed. 

Freight Specific Information 

The following information provides a snapshot of CCIA freight information for mail and cargo. The list of 
short-term and long-term capital improvements are likely to improve the operations at the CCIA 
including mail and cargo.  

 

 
 

 
 

 



Agenda Item #6A 

 
 

 
Long-range improvements reflect infrastructure maintenance and rehabilitation as required by existing 
conditions. Several revenue-generating projects are planned to make the airport a superior facility for 
traveler convenience and comfort. Timelines for many of these capital improvement projects are subject 
to Federal Aviation Administration entitlement grant levels and discretionary funding. 


	Item 5A Attachment 2 federal requirements.pdf
	FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS §450.326   Development and content of the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).

	Item 5A Attachment 3 2021-2024 TIP Process.pdf
	Background
	I. INTRODUCTION
	A. AUTHORITY OF THE MPO
	B. GEOGRAPHIC AREA OF THE TIP
	C. TIME PERIOD OF THE TIP
	D. TIP DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

	II. AGENCY ROLES AND REQUIREMENTS
	A.  AGENCY ROLES
	B. REQUIREMENTS AND COMMITMENTS FOR ALL TIP PROJECTS

	III. CORPUS CHRISTI MPO
	INITIAL PROGRAMMING
	A. OVERVIEW, FUNDING ASSESSMENT, AND INITIAL PROGRAMMING

	IV. CORPUS CHRISTI MPO
	CALL FOR PROJECTS
	A. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL CORPUS CHRISTI MPO-SELECTED TIP PROJECTS
	STATE AND REGIONAL FOCUS AREAS
	Enhance Safety
	Optimize Performance

	B.  REGIONAL CALL FOR PROJECTS
	Exhibit 5.  Project Categories Eligible for Regional Share Funding

	A. TIP DEVELOPMENT
	B.  ADOPTION
	C. TIP REVISIONS
	A. CCRTA PROCESS
	B. TxDOT PROCESS
	PART 1: BASE INFORMATION
	PART 2: EVALUATION CRITERIA, QUESTIONS, AND SCORING
	A. Board-approved Performance Measures (weight X%)
	B. Consistency and Contributions with Focus Areas (weight Y%)



	Item 5A Attachment 3 2021-2024 TIP Process.pdf
	Background
	I. INTRODUCTION
	A. AUTHORITY OF THE MPO
	B. GEOGRAPHIC AREA OF THE TIP
	C. TIME PERIOD OF THE TIP
	D. TIP DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

	II. AGENCY ROLES AND REQUIREMENTS
	A.  AGENCY ROLES
	B. REQUIREMENTS AND COMMITMENTS FOR ALL TIP PROJECTS

	III. CORPUS CHRISTI MPO
	INITIAL PROGRAMMING
	A. OVERVIEW, FUNDING ASSESSMENT, AND INITIAL PROGRAMMING

	IV. CORPUS CHRISTI MPO
	CALL FOR PROJECTS
	A. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL CORPUS CHRISTI MPO-SELECTED TIP PROJECTS
	STATE AND REGIONAL FOCUS AREAS
	Enhance Safety
	Optimize Performance

	B.  REGIONAL CALL FOR PROJECTS
	Exhibit 5.  Project Categories Eligible for Regional Share Funding

	A. TIP DEVELOPMENT
	B.  ADOPTION
	C. TIP REVISIONS
	A. CCRTA PROCESS
	B. TxDOT PROCESS
	PART 1: BASE INFORMATION
	PART 2: EVALUATION CRITERIA, QUESTIONS, AND SCORING
	A. Board-approved Performance Measures (weight X%)
	B. Consistency and Contributions with Focus Areas (weight Y%)






